

Finance & Administration Committee Meeting

OJRSA Operations & Administration Building Lamar Bailes Board Room January 28, 2025 at 9:00 AM

OJRSA commission and committee meetings may be attended in person at the address listed above. The OJRSA will also broadcast meetings live on its YouTube channel at www.youtube.com/@OconeeJRSA (if there is a technical issue preventing the livestreaming of the meeting, then a recording will be published on the channel as soon as possible). For those not able to attend in person, then the OJRSA Board or Committee Chair will accept public comments by mail (623 Return Church Rd, Seneca, SC 29678) or at info@ojrsa.org. Comments must comply with the public session instructions as stated on the meeting agenda and will be received up until one hour prior to the scheduled meeting. If there is not a public session scheduled for a meeting, then comments shall not be accepted.

Agenda

- A. Call to Order Celia Myers, Committee Chair
- **B. Public Session** Receive comments relating to topics on this agenda. Session is limited to a maximum of 30 minutes with no more than 5 minutes per speaker.
- C. Presentation and Discussion Items [May include vote and/or action on matters brought up for discussion]
 - 1. Update on current projects (Exhibit A) Chris Eleazer, Director
 - 2. Staffing considerations Chris Eleazer, Director and Kyle Lindsay, Operations Director
- D. Committee Action Items
 - Review December and Year-to-Date Financial Reports (Exhibit B) Chris Eleazer, Director and Lynn Stephens, Secretary/Treasurer and Office Manager
- E. Action Items to Recommend to the Board for Consideration
 - Consider revision to OJRSA Financial and Accounting Policy (Exhibit C) Lynn Stephens, Office Manager and Chris Eleazer, Director
- F. Executive Director's Discussion and Compliance Matters Chris Eleazer, Director
 - Miscellaneous (if any)
- **G.** Committee Members' Discussion Led by Celia Myers, Committee Chair Discussion can be related to matters addressed in this meeting or for future consideration by the Board or Committee. Voting is not permitted during this session.
- H. Upcoming Meetings All meetings to be held in the OJRSA Lamar Bailes Board Room unless noted otherwise.
 - Board of Commissioners February 3, 2025 at 4:00 PM
 - Sewer Feasibility Implementation Ad Hoc Committee February 13, 2025 at 9:00 AM
 - Operations & Planning Committee February 19, 2025 at 8:30 AM
 - Finance & Administration Committee February 25, 2025 at 9:00 AM
- I. Adjourn

CONSENT ORDER ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE TASKS 1/24/2025 14:44

					O&M PROJECT MILESTONES						
Row #	FY 2025 O&M Project (Project # (if applicable); PM) CANNOT CARRY OVER TO NEXT FISCAL YEAR WITHOUT BUDGET APPROVAL	Approx % Complete	Anticipated Completion	Budget/PO/ Contract Amount (\$)	Bids/RFQ/etc. Issue/Advertised	Req/Contract Signed	Started Work	Completed	Obligated/ Spent (\$)	Budget Remaining (\$)	GL Code (XXXXX = get from Office Mgr)
1	Consent Order 21-025-W Project: Biannual Compliance Report (CE)	100%	11/9/2024	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	11/8/2024	0	0	N/A
2	GIS Update and Upgrade (CE)	100%	11/10/2024	32,000	N/A	7/30/2024	8/1/2024	12/18/2024	34,761	(2,761)	Con Sys: Prof Svcs 601-02430
3	For Feasibilty Study: Establish Sewer Feasibility Implementation Ad Hoc Committee (CE)	100%	11/13/2024	0	N/A	N/A	9/9/2024	11/4/2024	0	0	N/A
4	For Feasibilty Study: Legal counsel prepare new governance and consolidation evaluations (CE)	100%	12/6/2024	0	N/A	N/A	9/10/2024	11/26/2024	0	0	Admin Services 501-02420
5	For Feasibilty Study: Financial/Rate Cost of Service Study (CE)	60%	3/10/2025	29,800	N/A	N/A	10/21/2024		16,390	13,410	Admin Services 501-02420
6	For Feasibilty Study: Ad Hoc Committee to Report to Board and County its Recommendations (CE)	0%	5/13/2025	0	N/A	N/A			0	0	N/A
7	ISS PS Generator Installation (MD)	0%	3/31/2025						0	0	Conv Sys R&M: PS 601-05090
8	Coneross Creek PS Pump Control Upgrade (MD)	0%	4/30/2025		N/A Prof Services				0	0	Con Sys R&M: PS 601-05030
9	Martin Creek PS Pump Restraint System (MD)	100%	3/31/2025	35,000	In-kind replacement	2/9/2024	7/30/2024	7/30/2024	32,017	2,983	Con Sys R&M: PS 601-05100
10	Martin Creek Storage Aerator Motor Replacement (MD)	0%	4/25/2025	Waiting for other costs	N/A OEM Equip/Svc				0	0	Con Sys R&M: PS 601-05100
11	Pelham Creek PS Manual Transfer Switch Installation (MD)	0%	4/30/2025	24,134	9/11/2024	11/6/2024			0	24,134	Con Sys R&M: PS 601-05120
12	Perkins Creek PS Wet Well Cleanout (KL, MD)	0%	12/15/2024	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	0	θ	Con Sys R&M: PS 601-05130
13	Richland Flow Meter Station Electrical Rewiring (MD)	0%	4/30/2025	13,000	9/4/2024	11/13/2024			0	13,000	Con Sys R&M: FMS 601-04030
14	Paint Flow Meter Stations (MD)	0%	5/30/2025						0	0	Con Sys Bldgs & Grnds 601-02550
15	Martin Creek PS/FM H2S Control ENGINEERING AND PERMITTING (KL)	0%	FY 2026						0	0	Con Sys R&M: PS 601-05100
16	Southern Oconee Sewer PS/FM H2S Control STUDY (CE,KL)	60%	1/31/2025	22,500	N/A	10/31/2024	11/4/2024		14,625	7,875	Retail O&M: Prof Svcs 1301-02430
17	Martin Creek PS Basin and Southern Westminster Trunk Sewer CCTV/Clean (KL, CE)	100%	12/20/2024	264,202	6/6/2024	8/6/2024	8/6/2024	9/19/2024	237,926	26,276	Con Sys: Prof Svcs 601-02430
18	Seneca Creek FM Replacement Constr Administration/Inspect (#2023-05; CE, KL)	0%	TBD	140,000	N/A	4/29/2024			0	140,000	O&M CIP: Con Sys 1401-06071
19	WRF Replace Disinfection System Lightning Mixer (JM)	0%	5/30/2025	Waiting for other costs	12/4/2024	12/4/2024			0	0	WRF R&M 701-03000
20	WRF Util Water Pump (1 unit only)/Valve, Flow Eq Flow Control, RAS/WAS Pump/Mag Meter/Valve Install (JM)	0%	5/30/2025	362,100	RFB #2025-05 11/1/2024	1/8/2025	1/8/2025		0	362,100	WRF R&M 701-03000
21	WRF Waterproofing Admin Building Roof/Walls and Chloring Building Roof (KL)	0%	2/28/2025	125,145	RFB #2025-07 11/18/2024	1/9/2025			1,950	123,195	Admin Contingency 501-02440

FY2025 O&M FUND PROJECTS

CONSENT ORDER ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE TASKS

1/24/2025 14:44

22	WRF Paving Around Biosolids Storage Pad and Solids Processing Building (KL)	0%	5/30/2025	31,500	12/6/2024				0	31,500	WRF Bldgs & Grnds 701-02550
23	WRF Tank & Wet Well Clanouts (Primary Splitter Box and Digester #1) (JM)	0%	2/28/2025	40,680	RFB #2025-04 10/24/2024	12/16/2024			0	40,680	WRF R&M 701-03000
24	WRF Replace/Paint Walkway Handrails (continued from FY 2024) (JM)	100%	11/30/2024	N/A	N/A	N/A	As time allows	As time allows	N/A	N/A	WRF R&M 701-03000
25	WRF Digesters/Solids Handling Tanks Grinder Rebuild (MD)	100%	10/31/2024	17,000	8/26/2024	8/26/2024	9/30/2024	10/4/2024	16,999	1	WRF R&M 701-03000
26	WRF Biological Reactor Basin Oxic Zone Gearbox Replacement (JM)	0%	5/30/2025	Waiting for other costs	12/4/2024	12/4/2024			0	0	WRF R&M 701-03000
27	EMERGENCY Hurricane Helene Debris Removal (KL, MM)	33%	2/28/2025	262,500	Emergnecy Procurement	1/13/2025	1/13/2025		0	262,500	Con Sys: Prof Svcs 601-02430
28	EMERGENCY Hurricane Helene Debris Management (KL, MM)	33%	6/30/2025	99,000	Emer 10/18/2024 RFP 12/30/2024	Emer 10/18/2024 RFP 1/23/2025	Emer 10/18/2024 RFP 1/23/2025		0	99,000	Con Sys: Prof Svcs 601-02430
29									0	0	
30									0	0	
31									0	0	
			TOTAL FUN	DS OBLIGATED/A	CTUAL TO DATE:	354,668	1,143,893	TOTAL AWARDED			

BUDGET REMAINING

EXHIBIT A - F&A Meeting 01/28/2025

	FY 2025 O&M Project (Project # (if applicable); PM)		
Row	CANNOT CARRY OVER TO NEXT FISCAL YEAR WITHOUT	Comp. Performing	
#	<u>BUDGET APPROVAL</u>	(and Project Mgr)	Notes
1	Consent Order 21-025-W Project: Biannual Compliance	OJRSA	DUE TO SCDES EVERY SIX MONTHS. Reports submitted: 11/14/2021, 5/9/2022, 11/10/2022, 5/9/2023, 11/9/2023, 5/10/2024. 11/8: Submitted to
1	Report (CE)	Chris Eleazer	SCDES. COMPLETE. Next report due 5/10/2025.
2	GIS Update and Upgrade (CE)	Weston & Sampson	Project to begin updating OJRSA, Satellite Sewer System, and other User assets and information for asset management and compliance purposes.
		Danny Gant	9/18: Met with D Gant to review easement progress. 11/22: Progress meeting with D Gant.
3	For Feasibilty Study: Establish Sewer Feasibility	OJRSA	10/7: Discussed at board meeting. Will consider committee at next meeting. 11/4: List approved by Board. COMPLETE. Update sent to Bonnie
	Implementation Ad Hoc Committee (CE)	Chris Eleazer	Ammons and Sophia Mazza with RIA on 11/13. First meeting to be held 12/2.
4	For Feasibilty Study: Legal counsel prepare new	OJRSA	9/10: Authorized Pope Flynn (L Flynn and Gary Pope) to begin development of new governance agreement as well as consolidation with another
	governance and consolidation evaluations (CE)	Chris Eleazer	multi-county organization. 11/26: Received from Pope Flynn. COMPLETE . 12/2: Shared memo with Ad Hoc Committee.
5	For Feasibilty Study: Financial/Rate Cost of Service	Willdan	12/4: Reviewed model with D Parker and A Mettlen. Will schedule time for it to be presented to Board. To be discussed at F&A Comm meeting in Dec.
	Study (CE)	Daryll Parker	1/24/2025: To be presented to board on 3/6.
6	For Feasibilty Study: Ad Hoc Committee to Report to	Ad Hoc Comm	
	Board and County its Recommendations (CE)	Comm Chair	
7	ISS PS Generator Installation (MD)	OJRSA Majat	OJRSA staff will perform the moving because others wanted too much to do it. Will need to determine what project will require for installation. We're considering making it a portable generator. KL to speak with A Maddox to find out how to make this happen.
	Consumer Create DC Desert Control Harvards (MD)	OJRSA Maint	
8	Coneross Creek PS Pump Control Upgrade (MD)	Border States Stuart Reynolds	8/6: Will need to bid. 9/3: Install evaluated several weeks ago, waiting on quote. 9/17: Expect quote later today. 10/8: Border States came out to look at site. 11/5: Still waiting for update. 12/11: Waiting on revised quote.
	Martin Crook BS Pump Postraint System (MD)	Stuart Reynolus	Ordered during FY 2024 but did not receive until FY 2025. 7/15/2024: Ordered as in-kind unit with new pump head assembly. 7/30: COMPLETE
9	Martin Creek PS Pump Restraint System (MD)	TBD	Ordered during 11 2024 but did not receive diffir 1 2025. 7/15/2024. Ordered as in-kind drift with new pump head assembly. 7/50. Columbia
10	Martin Creek Storage Aerator Motor Replacement (MD)	OJRSA	11/4: Sole source because of original equipment replacement. OJRSA will perform work. 12/11: Ordered. Expected to arrive in January. \$11,243 for
10		OJRSA Maint	motor, need to rent crane. 1/7/2025: Motor to be delivered tomorrow. Likely need to contract out install.
11	Pelham Creek PS Manual Transfer Switch Installation	Mason Electric	9/3: Staff met with electrician last week to get quote. 9/17: Waiting on 1 more quote and availability. 11/4. Approved low bid for equipment and
	(MD)	TBD	installation. 12/11: Ordered. We purchased ATS for WW Williams (5,664). Mason will do install (\$18,470).
12	Perkins Creek PS Wet Well Cleanout (KL, MD)	TBD	8/6: Will need to bid. Will do with splitter box and digeter #1. 9/3: KL nearly complete with RFB. 9/17: After further evaluation, do not need to
			perform and money will be better spent on Coneross PS. REMOVED .
13	Richland Flow Meter Station Electrical Rewiring (MD)	Davis Power	9/3: Staff met with electrician last week to get quote. 9/17: Waiting on 1 more quote. 11/5: Approved low bid. 12/11: Waiting on contractor to
	D : - 51	TBD	begin work.
14	Paint Flow Meter Stations (MD)	TBD	9/3: Waiting on quotes. 9/17: Need 2 more quotes. 11/5: Still waiting on quotes. 12/11: Met with painters for stations.
	Martin Crook DS/EM H2S Control ENGINEEDING AND	Garver	9/3: KL to reach out to Garver for next steps. 9/17: Need to determine permanent fix to this and where it goes in overall OJRSA priority list. 10/10:
15	Martin Creek PS/FM H2S Control ENGINEERING AND PERMITTING (KL)	Will Nading	Spoke with W Nading and he is putting together scope. 11/4: OJRSA will need to publicly solicit work (est. \$140,000)
	Southern Oconee Sewer PS/FM H2S Control STUDY	Garver	Project #2025-06 10/31: Sent signed agreement to Garver. 90 days to completion per doc. 12/11: Garver has visited sites. 1/17/2025: W Nading
16	(CE,KL)	Will Nading	said he will have draft to us soon for review.
	Martin Creek PS Basin and Southern Westminster Trunk	Secure Sewer & Svc	9/19: Received all information. Will review internally to confirm all deliverables received. 10/1: All contracted work is complete. OJRSA staff have to
17	Sewer CCTV/Clean (KL, CE)	Michael Bevelle	finish inspecting manholes and smoketest. 12/5: Finished additional work. 1/17: Smoke testing complete by OJRSA.
	Seneca Creek FM Replacement Constr	GMC	Reimbursible by Fountain Residential Properties LLC per agreement. 10/30: B Little trying to procure contractor. 11/4: Board approved Corrective
18	Administration/Inspect (#2023-05; CE, KL)	Michael Knapp	Easement for force main. 1/17/2025: Preconstruction meeting scheduled for 1/29.
10	WRF Replace Disinfection System Lightning Mixer (JM)	OJRSA	9/17: Need updated quote for this and WRF BRB Oxic Zone Motor Replacement. 10/14: Receive updated quote but it did not include upper bearing
19		OJRSA Maint	cost. 12/11: Ordered and expect to receive in February. \$44,432. Still need motor, which is easy to get.
20	WRF Util Water Pump (1 unit only)/Valve, Flow Eq Flow	TDD	1/8/2025: Board approved earlier in week, executed agreement. 1/10: Longer lead items have been ordered by Cove.
20	Control, RAS/WAS Pump/Mag Meter/Valve Install (JM)	TBD	
21	WRF Waterproofing Admin Building Roof/Walls and	BEE Group	To be funded with O&M Contingency. 12/3: Pre-bid meeting held. 12/4: Addendum #1 issued. 1/6/2025: Board approved \$110,145 plus owner
21	Chloring Building Roof (KL)	Rick Cook	contingency of NTE\$15,000. Will execute contract.

FY2025 O&M FUND PROJECTS

CONSENT ORDER ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE TASKS

1/24/2025 14:44

			0/2 W ***
22	WRF Paving Around Biosolids Storage Pad and Solids	TMS Asphalt	9/3: Waiting to hear back with quote. 9/17: May need this money for dewatering project concrete. 10/14: KL cannot get anyone to return calls or
	Processing Building (KL)	TBD	come see site. Will need to begin again. 12/11: Have 3 quotes, will award soon.
23	WRF Tank & Wet Well Clanouts (Primary Splitter Box	Greenstone Const	10/18: KL finalizing draft solicitation for bid. 10/24: Ad on SCBO. 11/26: Issued Addendum #1. 12/4: Received bids. Low bidGreenstone
	and Digester #1) (JM)	TBD	Construction. 12/16: Contract executed.
24	WRF Replace/Paint Walkway Handrails (continued	TBD	8/6: Purchased more paint. 10/14: Front end of plant complete. Now painting some items on back end of plant.
	from FY 2024) (JM)	160	
25	WRF Digesters/Solids Handling Tanks Grinder Rebuild	TDD	8/6: Getting updated quotes. 9/3: Has been ordered. 9/17: Rebuild kit arrived last week. 10/4: COMPLETE .
25	(MD)	TBD	
26	WRF Biological Reactor Basin Oxic Zone Gearbox	OJRSA	9/17: Need updated quote for this and WRF Disinfection System Lightning Mixer. 10/14: KL to review. 12/11: Ordered. \$42,187. Still need motor,
20	Replacement (JM)	OJRSA Maint	which is easy to get.
27	EMERGENCY Hurricane Helene Debris Removal (KL,	Strick's Forestry	Contract not to exceed \$262,500. Grinding/removing debris from OJRSA easements.
21	MM)	Donald Strickland	
28	EMERGENCY Hurricane Helene Debris Management (KL,	ICF Incorporated	Have multi-term contract with ICF Incorporated LLC (1/23/2025 through 1/23/2028 with possibility for extension Contract NTE \$99K/FY. Working with
28	MM)	Larry Hughes	debris removal contractor and FEMA. Began work under emergency contract.
29			
29			
30			
30			
26			
31			

FY2025 RESTRICTED FUND PROJECTS PROJECTS MAY CARRY ACROSS BUDGET YEARS

EXHIBIT A - F&A Meeting 01/28/2025

									RESTRICTE	D FUND PROJECT	MILESTONES				
Row #	Restricted Fund Projects (Project Manager)	OJRSA Project #	Approx % Complete	Anticipated Completion	OJRSA Funding Amount (S)	Max Funding by Others (S)	PO/Contract Amount (\$)	Bids/RFQ/etc. Issue/Advertised	PO/Contract Signed	Started Work	Completed	Obligated/ Spent Curr + Prev Years (\$)	Budget Remaining (\$)	GL Code (XXXXX = get from Office Mgr)	Comp. Performing (and Project Mgr)
А	Consent Order SSES/Rehab 2022 CONSTRUCTION SCIIP MATCH (CE, KL)	2024-02	100%	4/30/2024	351,291	0	351,291	7/28/2023	10/17/2023	12/4/2023	7/15/2024	316,577	34,714	PROJ & CONT 1501-09008	Tugaloo Pipeline Ed Hare
В	Consent Order SSES/Rehab 2023 ENGINEERING SCIIP MATCH (CE, KL)	2024-08	75%	8/31/2025	398,000	0	398,000	N/A	9/15/2023	10/3/2023		184,477	213,523	PROJ & CONT 1501-09009	WK Dickson Priya Verravalli
С	Consent Order SSES/Rehab 2023 CONSTRUCTION SCIIP GRANT (CE, KL)	2024-08	0%	8/31/2025	0	5,478,319	4,076,461	8/14/2024	11/20/2024			0	4,076,461	PROJ & CONT 1501-09009	Frank Brinkley Bio-Nomic Services
D	Dewatering Equipment Replacement ENGINEERING SCIIP MATCH (KL)	2024.00	75%	PHASE II 6/30/2026	440,300	0	440,300	9/15/2023	12/19/2023	1/11/2024		179,625	260,675	PROJ & CONT 1501-09011	KCI Technologies Tom Vollmar
E	Dewatering Equipment Replacement CONSTRUCTION SCIIP GRANT (KL)	2024-06	5%	PHASE II 6/30/2026	0	2,800,000	30,000	3/22/2024	7/30/2024	7/26/2024		0	30,000	PROJ & CONT 1501-09011	Harper GC Justin Jones
F	Exit 4/Oconee Manufacturing Park ("Sewer South Phase III") PS/Sewer ENGINEERING (CE)	TBD	98%	11/1/2024	0	0	N/A OCONEE CO PROJ	N/A OCONEE CO PROJ	N/A OCONEE CO PROJ	Sometime in 2022		0	0	TBD	Thomas & Hutton Lee Brackett
G	Flat Rock PS Replacement <u>ENGINEERING/CONST</u> <u>SVCS SCIIP MATCH</u> (CE)	2022-03	100%	10/23/2024	177,800	0	177,800	2/14/2022	7/5/2055	7/1/2022	10/10/2024	151,548	26,252	PROJ & CONT 1501-09005	KCI Technologies Tom Vollmar
н	Flat Rock PS Replacement CONSTRUCTION SCIIP GRANT (CE)	2024-03	100%	9/30/2024	0	1,321,656	1,321,656	6/7/2023	8/29/2023	3/25/2024	8/27/2024	1,321,656	0	PROJ & CONT 1501-09005	Cove Utilities Jeff Caffery
ı	Oconee County & Western Andeson County Sewer Master Plan (CE)	2022-01	100%	6/3/2024	217,800	100,000	317,800	N/A	8/9/2023	9/12/2023	7/1/2024	317,476	324	PROJ & CONT 1501-09007	Weston & Sampson Kip Gearhart
J	Regional Sewer Feasibility Study RIA GRANT (CE)	2024-01	100%	11/29/2024	0	100,000	100,000	5/26/2023	10/10/2023	11/8/2023	9/9/2024	100,000	0	PROJ & CONT 1501-09010	WK Dickson Angie Mettlen
К	Sewer South Phase II <u>ENG/INSPECT SVCS</u> COUNTY FUNDED (CE)	2019-XX	99%	10/31/2024	0	480,850	480,850	Inherited from Oconee Co	5/4/2023	5/4/2023		384,404	96,446	SSF: CIP 1401-06050	Davis & Floyd John Reynolds
L	Sewer South Phase II <u>CONSTRUCTION</u> EDA/RIA/COUNTY FUNDED (CE)	2023-06	99%	10/31/2024	0	12,311,447	11,687,329	9/27/2022	3/23/2023	6/1/2023		11,003,413	683,916	SSF: CIP 1401-06050	Kevin Moorhead Moorhead Construct
М	Martin Creek PS Basin Trunk Sewer CCTV Engineer Review (KL, CE)	2025-03	90%	3/31/2025	96,000	0	96,000	Consent Order Prof Svcs	9/30/2024			20,367	75,633	PROJ & CONT 1501-09012	Priya Verravalli WK Dickson
N	Southern Westminster Basin Trunk Sewer CCTV Engineer Review (KL, CE)	2025-03	90%	3/31/2025	76,000	0	76,000	Consent Order Prof Svcs	9/30/2024			11,104	64,896	PROJ & CONT 1501-09012	Priya Verravalli WK Dickson
0	Martin Crk PS Basin Flow Study and Compare to Perkins Crk PS Basin to Quantify I/I (CE)	2025-03	0%	3/31/2025	45,000	0	45,000	Consent Order Prof Svcs	9/30/2024			3,094	41,906	PROJ & CONT 1501-09013	Priya Verravalli WK Dickson
Р	Speeds Creek PS Force Main Replacement ENGINEERING (CE, KL)	TBD	0%	TBD								0	0	PROJ & CONT 1501-TBD	TBD
Q	Speeds Creek PS Force Main Replacement CONSTRUCTION (CE, KL)	100	0%	TBD								0	0	PROJ & CONT 1501-TBD	TBD
			0%									0	0		
					1,802,191	22,592,272	19,598,487	TOTAL	RESTRICTED FUN	DS OBLIGATED/A	CTUAL TO DATE:	13,993,740	5,604,746	TOTAL AWARDED	

BUDGET REMAINING

Page 5 of 6

EXHIBIT A - F&A Meeting 01/28/2025

1/24/2025 14:44 **FY2025 RESTRICTED FUND PROJECTS** PROJECTS MAY CARRY ACROSS BUDGET YEARS

Row		<u></u> .
#	Restricted Fund Projects (Project Manager)	Notes
l A	Consent Order SSES/Rehab 2022 CONSTRUCTION	Carryover from FY 2023 OJRSA CONG: \$40,000. 5/20: COMPLETE. Used \$6,785.98 of budgeted/approved Owner Contingency for additional concrete
	SCIIP MATCH (CE, KL)	work on final repair.
В	Consent Order SSES/Rehab 2023 ENGINEERING	PO/Contract Amount includes \$700,000 owner contingency 10/24: Signed and sent Notice to Award to Bio-Nomic. 11/5: Contractor submitted COI.
	(,,	Waiting on performance bonds. 11/7: Setting up pre-con meeting for mid-November. Construction to start early 2025. 11/20: Pre-con held today.
c	Consent Order SSES/Rehab 2023 CONSTRUCTION	NTP for 1/2/2025. Bio-Nomic to send out construction schedule and shop drawings for engineer review. 1/21/2025: Bio-Nomic was scheduled to start
'	SCIIP GRANT (CE, KL)	this week but delayed one week due to incoming winter weather.
	Dewatering Equipment Replacement ENGINEERING	11/4: 60% completion should be complete by end of week. Cost around \$3.8-3.9M currently and will operate 100% of current plant's rating. 11/7:
D		Authorized KCI to use \$3,000 of project contingency for redoing layout for Schwing presses. 12/2: Signed Construction Permit Application, etc.
	Dewatering Equipment Replacement	1/6/2025: Received 90% plans, Jackson Electric visited site to assess. 1/22: Received SCDES construction permit application payment request of \$550.
E	CONSTRUCTION SCIIP GRANT (KL)	
		9/23: Received revision. Need to begin working on an agreement. 10/8: Approved all plans. Need info from T&H. Sent Lee Brackett email for info.
F	Phase III") PS/Sewer ENGINEERING (CE)	1/6/2025: T&H submitted const permit app to SCDES.
		9/3: Rain over weekend caused washing. Contractor to better stabilize area. 9/17: Cove/KCI have identified some solutions for stabilization. 9/18:
G	·	Received SCDES Permit to Operate. Need record drawings, electronic files, site stabilitation completion, etc. 10/10: Received final engineering
	Flat Rock PS Replacement CONSTRUCTION SCIIP	invoice. 10/14: Received GIS information. COMPLETE. Retained approx. \$26,252 for PM and inspection funds not used, making OJRSA funding
н		amount \$151,548.
	GRANT (CE)	To continue under #2022-01 (Fair Play and Townville Area Sewer Basin Plan). 6/26: Provided W&S comments on draft. Have received 1/2 of "grant"
1	Oconee County & Western Andeson County Sewer	for study. 7/1: Presentated to Board and report finalized and put on website. 8/5: Board adopted. COMPLETE .
	(-)	
J	, ,	8/5: Presented to Board as draft. Needs to be finalized. Will be considered 9/9. 9/9: Board approved. Next phase is implementation. This will be
		tracked in FY2025 O&M Projects. COMPLETE . 10/31: Received RIA Grant Close Out Letter.
к	Sewer South Phase II <u>ENG/INSPECT SVCS</u> COUNTY	10/29: Contract complete but project not. D&F waiting on record drawings from contractor in order to get SCDES Permit to Operate. 11/6: SCDOT
	FUNDED (CE)	Permit closed out. 12/4: Moorhead (J Brooks) sent as-built drawings to Davis & Floyd, paused liquidated damage assessment. 12/19: Received SCDES
L	Sewer South Phase II CONSTRUCTION	Approval to Place Into Operation (Premit to Operate)! Moorhead will need to connect Welcome Center to new pump station after SCPRT applies for
	EDA/RIA/COUNTY FUNDED (CE)	service with Pioneer.
М	Martin Creek PS Basin Trunk Sewer CCTV Engineer	1/2/2025: KL to see if it is complete or if they still need smoke test info. Need to now look at flow study analysis. 1/9: Received prelim report from
	Review (KL, CE)	WKD. Will review and provide comments.
N	Southern Westminster Basin Trunk Sewer CCTV	10/24: All CCTV and manhole data provided to engineer. 11/7: WKD began spot checking data. 12/12: Waiting on missing CCTV data and smoke test
	Engineer Review (KL, CE)	results. 1/2/2025: Engineer now has all CCTV data. They still need smoke testing.
0	Martin Crk PS Basin Flow Study and Compare to	11/7: WK Dickson waiting on "frequent" storm for I/I analysis. TS Helene will be considered Act of God and not appropriate to use for study. 12/12:
	Perkins Crk PS Basin to Quantify I/I (CE)	Rainfall event on 12/10 considered first qualifying event. WKD continuing to monitor flow meters.
Р	Speeds Creek PS Force Main Replacement	CONSENT ORDER ITEM 7/15/2024: As identified in the 20 Year Master Plan, this force main should be replaced with similar sized pipe.
P	ENGINEERING (CE, KL)	
	Speeds Creek PS Force Main Replacement	
Q	CONSTRUCTION (CE, KL)	

Revenue Report

010 OJRSA FUND

Expenditure Report

Level 4 Summary for December 2024

Oconee Joint Rsa Page 1 of 4

Budget Current Pd Curr Year To Date **YTD Encumbered** Unencumbered Une Supplemental Accounts Appropriation Appropriation Pct **Expenditures** Pct **Balance Balance** Pct **Expenditures** 010 OJRSA FUND 005 EXPENSES 00501 ADMINISTRATION 01140 100% DEPRECIATION EXPENSE \$1,222,487.00 \$0.00 \$101.873.92 8 \$611.243.52 50 \$0.00 \$611.243.48 50 01/28/2025 7 51 \$0.00 \$81,768.69 49 \$0.00 \$591,619.02 01300 PAYROLL: SALARIES \$1,154,105.00 \$562,485.98 56 \$41,194.00 \$0.00 \$2,598.78 6 \$18,072.79 44 \$0.00 \$23,121.21 01310 OVERTIME 7 53 \$46,056.04 47 \$0.00 01350 PAYROLL: FICA/MEDICARE WH \$97,367.00 \$0.00 \$6,720.51 \$51,310.96 7 52 \$221,848.00 \$0.00 \$15,949.47 \$105,733.08 48 \$0.00 \$116,114.92 01380 PAYROLL: RETIREMENT 4 61 02200 COMMISSIONER EXPENSES \$13,680.00 \$0.00 \$600.00 \$5,280.00 39 \$0.00 \$8,400.00 02220 GROUP INSURANCE \$215,280.00 \$0.00 \$42,037.12 20 \$118,980.48 55 \$0.00 \$96,299.52 45 \$20,791.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 0 \$10,922.00 53 \$0.00 \$9,869.00 47 02240 WORKERS' COMPENSATION \$81,363.00 \$0.00 \$345.00 0 \$636.74 1 \$0.00 \$80,726.26 99 02250 INSURANCE-PROPERTY/GENERAL \$2,600.00 \$0.00 \$384.50 15 \$5,220.48 201 \$0.00 (\$2,620.48)(101)02260 EMPLOYEE WELLNESS \$10,248.88 \$31,475.00 \$0.00 \$1,427.20 5 33 \$0.00 \$21,226.12 67 02270 UNIFORMS \$8,650.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 0 \$210.00 2 \$0.00 \$8,440.00 98 02280 TRAVEL & POV MILEAGE \$11,715.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 0 \$800.00 7 \$0.00 \$10,915.00 93 02290 AGENCY MEMBERSHIPS \$4.563.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 0 \$1.011.00 22 \$0.00 \$3.552.00 78 02300 LICENSES/CERTIFS/MEMBERSHIPS 1 72 \$42,020.00 \$0.00 \$326.00 \$11,884.48 28 \$0.00 \$30,135.52 02310 SEMINARS/WKSHOPS & TRAINING \$4.300.00 \$0.00 \$564.74 13 \$2.187.93 51 \$0.00 \$2,112,07 49 02320 EVENTS & MEETING EXPENSES 5 29 71 \$16,250.00 \$0.00 \$750.00 \$4,792.53 \$0.00 \$11,457.47 02340 PUBLIC RELATIONS & ADVERTISING \$750.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 0 \$337.92 45 \$0.00 \$412.08 55 02360 MAILING/SHIPPING \$0.00 \$204.02 1 \$27,902.76 84 \$0.00 16 02370 SAFETY EQUIPMENT \$33,050.00 \$5,147.24 \$79,822.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 0 \$25,006.37 31 \$0.00 \$54,815.63 02380 OFFICE SUPPLIES 69 5 \$14,436.00 \$0.00 \$720.65 \$8,012.64 56 \$0.00 \$6,423.36 02410 TECHNOLOGY: PHONES/INTERNET/TV 44 \$237.823.00 \$0.00 \$41.610.71 17 \$198,755,68 84 \$39,067.32 16 02430 SERVICES: PROFESSIONAL/CONSULT \$0.00 0 02440 O&M CONTINGENCY \$150,000.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$16.26 0 \$0.00 \$149.983.74 100 \$37,250.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 0 \$15.184.32 41 \$0.00 \$22,065,68 59 02520 FUEL: VEHICLES & EQUIPMENT \$38,500.00 \$0.00 \$10.999.25 29 \$32.558.94 85 (\$51.39)\$5.992.45 02530 R&M: VEHICLES/TRAILERS/EQUIP 16 \$4.487.00 \$0.00 \$2,764.00 62 \$3.514.00 78 \$0.00 \$973.00 22 02560 FEES & PENALTIES \$311.644.56 8 48 52 Total Administration \$3,785,806,00 \$0.00 \$1.827.054.82 (\$51.39) \$1.958.802.57 00601 CONVEYANCE SYSTEM 02400 SUPPLIES/TOOLS \$15,000.00 \$0.00 \$1,080.09 7 \$9,785.87 65 \$84.74 \$5,129.39 34 02401 MAINTENANCE TOOLS & SUPPLIES \$13,000.00 \$0.00 \$832.83 6 \$8,667.65 67 \$360.48 \$3,971.87 31 02411 TECHNOLOGY: SCADA \$22,100.00 \$0.00 \$15,269.20 69 \$15,269.20 69 \$0.00 \$6,830.80 31 02430 SERVICES: PROFESSIONAL/CONSULT \$476,110.00 \$0.00 \$250,365.21 53 \$277,615.66 58 \$0.00 \$198,494.34 42 02450 CHEMICALS: SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE \$35.834.00 \$0.00 \$3.324.16 9 \$13,402,64 37 \$0.00 \$22,431,36 63 02455 CHEMICALS: HERBICIDE/PESTICIDE \$1,500.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 0 \$0.00 0 \$0.00 \$1,500.00 100 02490 ELECTRICITY \$266,700.00 \$0.00 \$19.368.80 7 \$114,476,35 43 \$0.00 \$152,223,65 57 9 53 47 \$8,950.00 \$0.00 \$812.30 \$4,748.33 \$0.00 \$4,201.67 02500 WATER 14 \$6.800.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 0 \$5,843.20 86 \$0.00 \$956.80 02521 FUEL: GENERATORS 0 0 100 2 \$12,000.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$12,000.00 02540 EQUIPMENT RENTALS 76 \$5,500.00 \$0.00 \$741.19 13 \$1,292.94 24 \$0.00 \$4.207.06 02550 BUILDINGS & GROUNDS

010 OJRSA FUND 005 EXPENSES 00601 CONVEYANCE SYSTEM

Oconee Joint Rsa Expenditure Report

Level 4 Summary for December 2024

	Budget	Supplemental	Current Pd	Curr	Year To Date	YTD	Encumbered	Unencumbered	Une
accounts	Appropriation	Appropriation	Expenditures	Pct	Expenditures	Pct	Balance	Balance	Pct
02590 ROLLING STOCK & EQUIPMENT	\$275,080.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$265,493.50	97	\$0.00	\$9,586.50	3
04000 FLOW MONITOR STAS	\$16,500.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	\$16,500.00	100
04010 FLOW MONITOR STAS: COL'S FORK	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$13.03	0	\$0.00	(\$13.03)	0
05000 PUMP STATIONS	\$228,450.00	\$0.00	\$2,451.47	1	\$9,481.55	4	\$4,901.37	\$214,067.08	94
05010 PUMP STATIONS: CANE PS	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$2,128.71	0	\$2,273.71	0	\$0.00	(\$2,273.71)	0
05020 PUMP STATIONS: CHOESTOEA PS	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$10,465.84	0	\$0.00	(\$10,465.84)	0
05030 PUMP STATIONS: CONEROSS PS	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$52.96	0	\$0.00	(\$52.96)	0
05040 PUMP STATIONS: CRYOVAC PS	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$13.96	0	\$13.96	0	\$0.00	(\$13.96)	0
05050 PUMP STATIONS: DAVIS CRK 1 PS	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$146.43	0	\$1,501.97	0	\$0.00	(\$1,501.97)	0
05060 PUMP STATIONS: DAVIS CRK 2 PS	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$8,633.38	0	\$15,243.13	0	\$837.53	(\$16,080.66)	0
05080 PUMP STATIONS: HALFWAY BR PS	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	\$0.00	0
05090 PUMP STATIONS: ISS PS	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$20.17	0	\$0.00	(\$20.17)	0
05100 PUMP STATIONS: MARTIN CREEK PS	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$345.22	0	\$35,833.61	0	\$0.00	(\$35,833.61)	0
05110 PUMP STATIONS: MILLBROOK PS	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$150.86	0	\$150.86	0	\$0.00	(\$150.86)	0
05120 PUMP STATIONS: PELHAM CREEK PS	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$16.51	0	\$0.00	(\$16.51)	0
05130 PUMP STATIONS: PERKINS PS	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$150.85	0	\$5,165.58	0	\$123.11	(\$5,288.69)	0
05140 PUMP STATIONS: SENECA PS	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$1,563.29	0	\$2,604.62	0	\$0.00	(\$2,604.62)	0
05160 PUMP STATIONS: WEXFORD PS	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$5,701.93	0	\$0.00	(\$5,701.93)	0
05210 DUCK POND ROAD PS	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$1,770.66	0	\$0.00	(\$1,770.66)	0
05230 GRAVITY SEWER & FORCE MAINS	\$130,000.00	\$0.00	\$7,619.42	6	\$67,987.88	52	(\$316.02)	\$62,328.14	48
Total Conveyance System	\$1,513,524.00	\$0.00	\$314,997.37	21	\$874,893.31	58	\$5,991.21	\$632,639.48	42
00701 WRF OPERATIONS									
02400 SUPPLIES/TOOLS	\$12,000.00	\$0.00	\$216.89	2	\$4,439.23	37	\$311.11	\$7,249.66	60
02411 TECHNOLOGY: SCADA	\$12,500.00	\$0.00	\$1,959.40	16	\$1,959.40	16	\$0.00	\$10,540.60	84
02430 SERVICES: PROFESSIONAL/CONSULT	\$18,102.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$31,820.00	176	\$0.00	(\$13,718.00)	(76)
02451 CHEMICALS: CHLORINE	\$60,242.00	\$0.00	\$9,913.76	16	\$29,749.23	49	\$0.00	\$30,492.77	51
02452 CHEMICALS: POLYMER	\$66,450.00	\$0.00	\$2,524.50	4	\$26,575.68	40	\$0.00	\$39,874.32	60
02454 CHEMICALS: SODIUM BISULFITE	\$21,474.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$5,691.80	27	\$0.00	\$15,782.20	73
02457 CHEMICALS: OTHER	\$6,000.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$1,380.12	23	\$0.00	\$4,619.88	77
02470 GARBAGE	\$2,067.00	\$0.00	\$27.75	1	\$166.50	8	\$0.00	\$1,900.50	92
02480 NATURAL GAS	\$1,855.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$338.00	18	\$0.00	\$1,517.00	82
02490 ELECTRICITY	\$336,000.00	\$0.00	\$24,607.84	7	\$151,498.11	45	\$0.00	\$184,501.89	55
02500 WATER	\$3,710.00	\$0.00	\$1,483.76	40	\$10,733.62	289	\$0.00	(\$7,023.62)	(189)
02510 SLUDGE DISPOSAL	\$319,289.00	\$0.00	\$5,313.35	2	\$52,395.70	16	\$0.00	\$266,893.30	84
02521 FUEL: GENERATORS	\$4,000.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	\$4,000.00	100
02540 EQUIPMENT RENTALS	\$5,000.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	\$5,000.00	100
02550 BUILDINGS & GROUNDS	\$83,400.00	\$0.00	\$1,717.00	2	\$9,854.67	12	\$0.00	\$73,545.33	88
03000 WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY	\$619,450.00	\$0.00	\$2,637.24	0	\$27,035.85	4	\$70.45	\$592,343.70	96
Total Wrf Operations	\$1,571,539.00	\$0.00	\$50,401.49	3	\$353,637.91	23	\$381.56	\$1,217,519.53	77
00801 PRETREATMENT									
01300 PAYROLL: SALARIES	\$77,472.00	\$0.00	\$6,278.79	8	\$38,962.26	50	\$0.00	\$38,509.74	50
01380 PAYROLL: SALARIES 01380 PAYROLL: RETIREMENT	\$14,379.00	\$0.00	\$1,135.02	8	\$36,962.26 \$7,134.72	50	\$0.00	\$7,244.28	50
U 1300 FATRULL. RETIREIVIENT	φ14,379.00	φυ.υυ	φ1,130.02	0	φ1,134.1Z	50	φυ.υυ	Φ1,244.20	50

010 OJRSA FUND 005 EXPENSES 00801 PRETREATMENT

Oconee Joint Rsa Expenditure Report

Level 4 Summary for December 2024

	Budget	Supplemental	Current Pd	Curr	Year To Date	YTD	Encumbered	Unencumbered	Une
Accounts	Appropriation	Appropriation	Expenditures	Pct	Expenditures	Pct	Balance	Balance	Pct .
02220 GROUP INSURANCE	\$7,522.00	\$0.00	\$1,259.72	17	\$3,779.16	50	\$0.00	\$3,742.84	50
02300 LICENSES/CERTIFS/MEMBERSHIPS	\$425.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	\$425.00	100
02310 SEMINARS/WKSHOPS & TRAINING	\$2,975.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	\$2,975.00	100
02380 OFFICE SUPPLIES	\$3,700.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$4,036.80	109	\$0.00	(\$336.80)	(9)
02410 TECHNOLOGY: PHONES/INTERNET/TV	\$748.00	\$0.00	\$53.55	7	\$374.68	50	\$0.00	\$373.32	50
02430 SERVICES: PROFESSIONAL/CONSULT	\$38,489.00	\$0.00	\$1,140.00	3	\$13,133.72	34	\$0.00	\$25,355.28	66
Total Pretreatment	\$145,710.00	\$0.00	\$9,867.08	7	\$67,421.34	46	\$0.00	\$78,288.66	54
00901 LABORATORY									`
02400 SUPPLIES/TOOLS	\$6,000.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$2,787.11	46	\$0.00	\$3,212.89	54
02430 SERVICES: PROFESSIONAL/CONSULT	\$73,377.00	\$0.00	\$1,912.05	3	\$14,345.40	20	\$0.00	\$59,031.60	80
02456 CHEMICALS: LABORATORY	\$5,000.00	\$0.00	\$208.97	4	\$1,791.02	36	\$0.00	\$3,208.98	64
Total Laboratory	\$84,377.00	\$0.00	\$2,121.02	3	\$18,923.53	22	\$0.00	\$65,453.47	78
01201 CONTRACT OPERATIONS									
02411 TECHNOLOGY: SCADA	\$625.00	\$0.00	\$707.40	113	\$707.40	113	\$0.00	(\$82.40)	(13)
02430 SERVICES: PROFESSIONAL/CONSULT	\$20,610.00	\$0.00	\$9,825.00	48	\$10,310.00	50	\$0.00	\$10,300.00	50
02500 WATER	\$1,365.00	\$0.00	\$81.90	6	\$307.96	23	\$0.00	\$1,057.04	77
02521 FUEL: GENERATORS	\$500.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	\$500.00	100
02550 BUILDINGS & GROUNDS	\$500.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	\$500.00	100
05170 PUMP STATIONS: GCCP-PS	\$10,500.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$1,475.75	14	\$0.00	\$9,024.25	86
Total Contract Operations	\$34,100.00	\$0.00	\$10,614.30	31	\$12,801.11	38	\$0.00	\$21,298.89	62
01301 RETAIL SERVICES									
02400 SUPPLIES/TOOLS	\$500.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	\$500.00	100
02400 SUPPLIES/TOOLS 02411 TECHNOLOGY: SCADA	\$1,250.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	\$1,250.00	100
	\$7,406.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$345.00	5	\$0.00	\$7,250.00 \$7,061.00	95
02430 SERVICES: PROFESSIONAL/CONSULT 02490 ELECTRICITY	\$2,100.00	\$0.00	\$751.81	36	\$4,836.25	230	\$0.00	(\$2,736.25)	(130)
02500 WATER	\$2,100.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	\$1,050.00	100
	\$7,030.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	\$1,030.00 \$725.00	100
05180 PUMP STATIONS: WELCOME CTR	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$860.66	0	\$0.00	(\$860.66)	0
05190 PUMP STATIONS: BROOMWAY LN	•		•	-				, , ,	
Total Retail Services	\$13,031.00	\$0.00	\$751.81	6	\$6,041.91	46	\$0.00	\$6,989.09	54
01401 CAPITAL PROJECTS									
06050 SEWER SOUTH PHASE II	\$3,700,000.00	\$0.00	\$12,387.93	0	\$1,709,296.80	46	\$0.00	\$1,990,703.20	54
06060 CONVEYANCE SYSTEM	\$140,000.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	0	\$0.00	\$140,000.00	100
Total Capital Projects	\$3,840,000.00	\$0.00	\$12,387.93	0	\$1,709,296.80	45	\$0.00	\$2,130,703.20	55
01501 CONTINGENCY FUND									
09005 FLAT ROCK PS UPGRADE	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$596,905.76	0	\$0.00	(\$596,905.76)	0
09007 CENTRAL OCONEE SWR MASTER PLAI	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$6,580.00	0	\$0.00	(\$6,580.00)	0
09009 COLLECTION SYSTEM REHAB	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$12,515.54	0	\$45,468.88	0	\$0.00	(\$45,468.88)	0
09010 REG SEWER FEASIBILITY STUDY	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	0	\$26,542.50	0	\$0.00	(\$26,542.50)	0
09011 DEWATERING EQUIP REPLACEMENT	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$58,759.00	0	\$100,025.00	0	\$0.00	(\$100,025.00)	0
09012 MARTIN CRK & WESTMINSTER CCTV	\$0.00	\$0.00	(\$185,330.95)	0	\$26,663.95	0	\$0.00	(\$26,663.95)	0
09013 MARTIN/PERKINS CRK FLOW STUDY	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$1,334.80	0	\$2,666.80	0	\$0.00	(\$2,666.80)	0
1/22/2025							Fynei	nditure Report Page	3 of 4

Expenditure Report Page 3 of 4

Oconee Joint Rsa Expenditure Report

Level 4 Summary for December 2024

	Budget	Supplemental	Current Pd	Curr	Year To Date	YTD	Encumbered	Unencumbered	Une
Accounts	Appropriation	Appropriation	Expenditures	Pct	Expenditures	Pct	Balance	Balance	Pct
Total Contingency Fund	\$0.00	\$0.00	(\$112,721.61)	0	\$804,852.89	0	\$0.00	(\$804,852.89)	0 §
Total EXPENSES	\$10,988,087.00	\$0.00	\$600,063.95	5	\$5,674,923.62	52	\$6,321.38	\$5,306,842.00	48
Total OJRSA FUND	\$10,988,087.00	\$0.00	\$600,063.95	5	\$5,674,923.62	52	\$6,321.38	\$5,306,842.00	48
TOTAL ALL FUNDS	\$10,988,087.00	\$0.00	\$600,063.95	5	\$5,674,923.62	52	\$6,321.38	\$5,306,842.00	48



FINANCIAL & ACCOUNTING POLICY

August 7_____, 20235

August 7, 2023 , 2025

Table of Contents

Definitions, Construction, Acronyms, and Format	1
Definitions	1
Construction	4
Acronyms and Abbreviations	4
Document Format	1
Section 1 - Purpose and Adoption	1
Section 2 – Financial Matters	1
2.1 Fiscal Year	1
2.2 Unrestricted Funds and Accounts	2
2.3 Restricted Funds and Accounts	2
2.4 Creating and Closing Additional Accounts	2
2.5 Annual Budget	2
2.6 Revenues	4
2.7 Expenditures	4
2.8 Debt Compliance	
2.9 Capital Improvement Program	6
2.10 Depository and Investment Policy	
2.11 Surplus Property	7
Section 3 – Internal Controls	8
3.1 Organization Review and Approval of Finances	
3.2 Financial	8
3.3 Reconciliation	8
3.4 Authorized Signatories	8
3.5 Processes and Procedures	
3.6 Financial Signer Authority	
Section 4 – Tax Compliance	10
4.1 Tax Policies	10
4.2 Responsibility	10
4.3 Training	
4.4 Expenditure of Bond Proceeds	
4.5 Reimbursements	
4.6 Use of Bond-Financed Facilities; Limits on Private Business Use	
4.7 Arbitrage and Rebate	12
4.8 Availability of VCAP As Remedial Action	
4.9 Records to be Maintained	
4.10 Certain Qualifications	14
Section 5 – Accounting	14
5.1 Accounting Methodology	
5.2 Electronic Accounts Payable and Receivables	
5.3 Capital Assets and Depreciation	
5.4 Insurance and Damage Reimbursements	
5.5 Consumables, Inventory, and Chemical Accounting System.	
Pavisian History	10

August 7, 2023 , 2025

DEFINITIONS, CONSTRUCTION, ACRONYMS, AND FORMAT

This Section of the *OJRSA Financial and Accounting Policy* contains definitions, acronyms, abbreviations, and formatting that are specific to this document. <u>In addition, additional terms using initial capitals shall have meanings ascribed thereto in the body of this Policy.</u>

DEFINITIONS

The following words, unless the context, custom or intent clearly indicates otherwise, shall mean:

Accounting Period means the OJRSA's Fiscal Year.

<u>Annual Budget</u> means a financial plan containing projected expenditures and resources covering a single Fiscal Year (July 1–June 30).

—Authorized Signer s-shall mean the Board Chair (or acting Board Chair) and the Executive Director, acting individually or together, as applicable. These individuals shall possess all authority described in Table 1.

<u>Limited Signers shall mean the F&A Committee Chair and Operation and Planning Committee Chair. These individuals shall possess all authority described in Table 1.</u>

<u>Bond Counsel</u> means, with respect to a particular issue of Bonds (as such term is defined in Section 4.1 hereof), either the law firm that served as bond counsel in connection with the issuance of such Bonds, or any other nationally recognized firm of attorneys experienced in the field of municipal bonds whose opinions as to federal income tax matters are generally accepted by purchasers of municipal bonds.

<u>Capital Improvement Fund</u> means the Projects & Contingency Fund, as well as other <u>funds or accounts</u> that may be created in accordance with Section 2.4.

<u>Capital Projects</u> means, in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, construction, renovation, or replacement projects for an existing facility or facilities of the OJRSA <u>sewer utility</u> system which extend the life of the system, or the purchase of an asset or equipment, to include software, with a useful life exceeding a year.

<u>Cash Basis of Accounting</u> means the method of accounting utilized by OJRSA, pursuant to which revenues and expenditures are recorded when actual payments are received or disbursed.

Code means the Code Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.

<u>Consumable</u> means items not included in the definition of Inventory and are not replaced or are finished in a process, such as janitorial items, toilet paper, batteries, light bulbs, and gloves. Consumables are usually <u>scrapped discarded</u> when they have failed. <u>Consumables do not include fuels, oils, or lubricants purchased or stored in any size vessel</u>.

<u>Contract</u> means any type of binding agreement, regardless of the title.

<u>Debt Service</u> means for the period in question, the total cash required to pay back debt obligations calculated by totaling the periodic interest and principal payments coming due on a debt.

August 7, 2023

, 2025

<u>Debt Service Coverage Ratio</u> means for any period of time, the ratio determined by dividing income available for Debt Service by the Debt Service for the given period.

<u>De Minimis</u> means something that is very trifling or of little importance.

<u>Employee</u> has the meaning given such term in the then current version of the *OJRSA Employee Handbook*.

<u>Executive Director</u> means the Executive Director of OJRSA who serves as the <u>Cchief Aadministrative oOfficer of the OJRSA.</u>

<u>Extraordinary Event</u> means an unprecedented event due to circumstances that are not under the control of management, is unusual in nature, and is infrequent in occurrence, such as a vehicle wreck, natural disaster, third-party damage, pandemic, federal government mandates, or other Act of God.

F&A Committee shall mean the OJRSA's Finance & Administration Committee.

<u>Financial Signer shall mean the OJRSA's Office Manager.</u>

<u>Fiscal Year</u> means the period of twelve calendar months, beginning on July 1 of each year and ending on June 30 of the following year, unless the same shall have been changed by OJRSA pursuant to the authorization contained in Section 2.1 hereof.

<u>Full Accrual Basis of Accounting means a financial accounting method that allows an entity company</u> to record revenue before receiving payment for goods or services sold, and record expenses as they are incurred.

<u>Generally Accepted Accounting Principles or GAAP</u> means the collection of commonly-followed accounting rules and standards for financial reporting <u>and measuring financial performance</u>.

<u>Insurance and Damage Reimbursement</u> means the receipt of cash from an insurance company, governmental agency (such as FEMA), or other such organization that covers losses incurred as a result of an Extraordinary Event. Reimbursement could cover equipment, material, labor, infrastructure replacement, and other such expenses incurred by the agency.

<u>Inventory</u> means items used to replace a lost or damaged part of a machine, such as pulleys, couplings, and rotors used for pump components that are not <u>c</u>Capital Aassets as identified in Section 5.3. There are three (3) classifications of Inventory:

- 1. Vital: An item within critical equipment that, should it fail, will badly reduce or stop production or will harm the agencyOJRSA, a Pperson, or the community. These are typically items that have a long lead time to receive when ordered. Examples include spare pumps, motors, repair clamps, air release valves, and generators that are dedicated to specific applications.
- 2. Essential: An item that could cause a significant loss of production but will not endanger the safety of people or the environment. Examples include pump repair parts and common-size operating valves.
- 3. Desirable: An item that would not cause any problems if not on hand in the moment and are typically stocked by or can easily be fabricated by vendors. Examples include bearings, gauges, and belts.

IRS Code means United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Joint Authority Act means in the South Carolina Joint Authority Water and Sewer Systems Act, which is codified at Title 6, Chapter 25 of the Code.

<u>Lab Chemicals</u> means items not included in the definition of Inventory and are solid, liquid, or gaseous chemicals and associated labware used for compliance monitoring or process control in the OJRSA laboratory, such as pH solution, acids, sodium hydroxide, and *E. coli* bottles.

August 7, 2023

, 2025

<u>Limited Signer shall mean the F&A Committee Chair and Operation and Planning Committee Chair. These individuals shall possess all authority described in Section 3.4 herein.</u>

Member Cities means the municipalities of Seneca, Walhalla, Westminster, and the areas they provide retail wastewater collection.

<u>Person</u> means any corporate organization (including, without limitation, corporations, limited partnerships, and limited liability companies), business, individual, union, committee, club, other organization, or group of individuals.

Personal Property means any property besides land that is owned by OJRSA.

<u>Policy</u> means these financial policies of OJRSA, as approved by the Board <u>and as amended from time to time</u>.

<u>Process Chemicals</u> means items not included in the definition of Inventory and are liquid or gaseous chemicals used solely for the purpose of treating wastewater and biosolids that is purchased in individual bulk quantities greater than fifty (50) gallons or one hundred (100) pounds, such as chlorine gas, sodium hypochlorite, sodium bisulfite, peracetic acid, and liquid polymer. Process Chemicals does not include chemicals purchased in bags (such as lime or dry polymer) or fuels, oils, or lubricants purchased or stored in any size vessel.

<u>Real Property</u> means any land, all things growing on or attached thereto, and all improvements made thereto including buildings and structures located thereon.

Regulations means United States Department of the Treasury Regulations unless otherwise stated.

Responsible Official means the Executive Director, or such other responsible official designated by the OJRSA Board who is responsible for OJRSA's compliance with the policies and procedures set forth in Section 4 of this Policy and any Tax Certificate to be entered into by OJRSA. The Responsible Official may from time to time delegate certain of the responsibilities to be performed by other members of the staff of OJRSA, acting under the general supervision and direction of the Responsible Official.

Retail Impact Fund means the fund operated pursuant to Section 3.03, the funding source of which is funded by impact fees collected and expended pursuant to Title 6 Chapter 1 Article 9 (DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES) of the South Carolina Code of Laws 1976, as amended and OJRSA Impact Fee Policy.

<u>Retail</u> means, in reference to OJRSA's wastewater treatment and/or conveyance system, the portion of the wastewater collection system, trunk sewer, and/or treatment plant where OJRSA is the sole wastewater utility providing services to the end user.

<u>Sinking Fund</u> means a fund established by OJRSA for the purpose of accumulating revenue over a period of time to fund a future Capital Project, or repayment of long-term debt.

<u>Supplies</u> means all personal property, including but not limited to equipment, materials, printing, insurance, and leases of real property but not real property or an interest in real property other than a lease hold.

<u>Surplus Property</u> means OJRSA-owned real or personal property with remaining useful life that has no reasonable expectation of future use within the purposes of OJRSA.

<u>Tax Agreement</u> means the agreement entered into by OJRSA with respect to each Bond or series of Bonds issue setting forth obligations intended to maximize the likelihood that all applicable post-issuance requirements of <u>federal income tax law neededIRS Code</u> to pre-serve the tax-exempt or tax-advantaged status of such Bonds-are <u>satisfied</u>.

August 7, 2023

, 2025

Wholesale Impact Fund means the fund operated pursuant to Section 3.03, the funding source of which is funded by impact fees collected and expended pursuant to Title 6, Chapter, 1 Article 9 (DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES) of the South Carolina-Code of Laws 1976, as amended and OJRSA Impact Fee Policy.

<u>Wholesale</u> means, in reference to OJRSA's wastewater treatment and/or conveyance system, the portion of OJRSA wastewater trunk sewer and/or treatment system that serves the Member Cities, as well as the Town of West Union, which are considered to be the users' retail sewer provider.

CONSTRUCTION

In this Policy, unless the context otherwise requires:

- A. Articles and Sections referred to by number shall mean the corresponding Articles and Sections of this PolicyResolution.
- B. The terms "hereby," "hereof," "hereto," "herein," "hereunder," and any similar terms refer to this Resolution-Policy, and the term "hereafter" shall mean after, and the term "heretofore" shall mean before the date of adoption of this PolicyResolution.
- C. Words of the masculine gender shall mean and include correlative words of the female and neuter genders, and words importing the singular number shall mean and include the plural number and vice versa.
- D. Shall is mandatory and requires compliance. May is permissive.

ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

August 7, 2023

, 2025

ACH: Automated Clearing House

Board: Board of Commissioners of Oconee Joint Regional Sewer Authority

ACFR: Annual Comprehensive Financial Report EMMA: Electronic Municipal Markets Access System FEMA: Federal Emergency Management Agency FDIC: Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FINRA: Financial Industry Regulatory Authority GAAP: Generally Accepted Accounting Principles GASB: Government Accounting Standards Board GFOA: Government Finance Officers Association

LGIP: South Carolina State Local Government Investment Pool

OJRSA: Oconee Joint Regional Sewer Authority

IRS: United States Internal Revenue Service

VCAP: Internal Revenue Service's Voluntary Closing Agreement Program

SCDAH: South Carolina Department of Archives and History or any successor agency

WOMSS: Work Order Maintenance Software System

DOCUMENT FORMAT

This manual policy contains fonts and styles that mean certain things, including points of emphasis or reference other sections or materials. Below is a list of the types used within this manual and what it represents when encountered in the OJRSA Financial and Accounting Policy.

BOLD CAPITAL LETTERS Important point of emphasis

<u>Dashed Underline</u> Name of a form to use for documenting a task referenced in the document

Italic 'Cambria Math' Font Mathematic or chemistry formula

Italics Title of books, manuals, and other documents

MIX-SIZED CAPITAL LETTERS Name of sections or appendices in a book, manual, or other document

Underlined Italics A note of caution or warning

SECTION 1 – PURPOSE AND ADOPTION

Oconee Joint Regional Sewer Authority's ("OJRSA") has developed and adopted a comprehensive set of financial policies that are consistent with the Board of Commissioners of Oconee Joint Regional Sewer Authority's's (the "Board"), as the governing body of OJRSA, goals and objectives. The This OJRSA Financial and Accounting Policy (this "Policy") is an integral part of the development of service, providing of capital, and establishing of financial plans and the Aannual bBudget. This Policy provides the basis for decision-making and ensure the OJRSA's ongoing financial stability.

The Policy shall become effective in accordance with OJRSA Resolution 20242025-XX. All resolutions or policies (including former financial policies) that are in conflict with the provisions of this the approval resolution or the Policies Policy adopted thereby (as amended) are hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict or inconsistency or in their entirety where the conflict or inconsistency is not severable from such document.

SECTION 2 – FINANCIAL MATTERS

2.1 FISCAL YEAR

OJRSA shall be operated on a Fiscal Year basis, which shall commence on the first (1st) day of July of each year and shall end on the thirtieth (30th) day of June of the following year. OJRSA may, by resolution duly enacted adopted by the Board, change the Fiscal Year at any time from that now existing to a different twelve (12) month period.

August 7, 2023

, 2025

2.2 UNRESTRICTED FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS

OJRSA maintains two <u>unrestricted</u> (2) accounts or funds, which are collectively referred to within this Policy as the "Unrestricted Fund." These accounts are utilized to fund the general operation and maintenance of the Wholesale and Retail systems.

The Unrestricted Fund is used to receive revenue and pay expenses associated with the Annual Budget, which may include capital expenditures as approved by the Board. The Unrestricted Fund is comprised of the following two funds:

- A. <u>Wholesale Operations & Maintenance Fund</u>. The banking and investment accounts used to pay for normal operating business expenses associated with the Wholesale wastewater conveyance and treatment system.
- B. Retail Operations & Maintenance Fund. The Bbanking and investment account used to pay for normal operating business expenses associated with the Retail wastewater conveyance and treatment system. All revenues collected from the Retail system must remain in this fund and cannot intermingle with other OJRSA funds except as necessary for operating shared assets, such as the Coneross Creek Water Reclamation Facility, which is OJRSA's wastewater treatment plant. If revenues do not equal or exceed expenses, then Oconee County is responsible for providing adequate funding. The Member Cities do not share this responsibility.

 1

2.3 RESTRICTED FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS

OJRSA maintains three (3) restricted bank accounts, each with a specific purpose as detailed below, where the funds can only be used for those purposes which they were collected and/or designated by the Board. Within this Policy, these funds may be collectively referred to as "Restricted Funds."

Expenditures from these funds are strictly limited to the mandates of each fund and can only be made upon Board approval. Restricted Fund revenues or fund balance are not to be used to subsidize other funds, except as required or permitted by this Policy.

- A. Wholesale Impact Fund. The bBanking and investment account to be used for the renovation, modernization, and expansion of OJRSA-Wholesale system. Such fund shall be managed in a manner consistent with Section 2.6(F) of this Policy.
- B. <u>Retail Impact Fund</u>. Banking and investment account to be used for the renovation, modernization, and expansion of OJRSA retail system including the:
 - 1. Coneross Creek Water Reclamation Facility,
 - 2. Construction of new treatment facilities, and
 - 3. Conveyance system.
- C. Projects and Contingency Capital Projects Fund. This fund is Uused as a reserve fund for:
 - 1. Capital Pprojects,
 - 2. Unexpected expenses or emergency repairs that were not included in the Wholesale Operations and Maintenance Fund and Retail Operations and Maintenance Fund for a Fthe fiscal yYear,
 - 3. The restoring or replacing of depreciated or obsolete properties of the system, and
 - 4. Other purposes as recognized by the Board.

2.4 Creating and Closing Additional Accounts

The OJRSA may create and close additional special fund accounts as necessary, such as when funding a special project. The Board shall determine if such accounts are Unrestricted Funds or Restricted Funds.

2.5 ANNUAL BUDGET

A. The Annual Budget is the vehicle through which the Board authorizes OJRSA to fund operations during a Fiscal Year for specific purposes and which establishes the economic resources that are required to support these

¹-See Article 15, Section (a) of the *Inter-Municipal Agreement and Joint Resolution* filed with the Oconee County Clerk of Court on October 31, 2007.

August 7, 2023

, 2025

- activities. The Annual Budget, which is required by South Carolina law, is a fiscal, planning, and policy document, reflecting the allocation of limited revenues among diverse uses.
- B. Citizen input into decisions relating to revenues will be solicited during the budget public hearing process and will be made available for public review prior to consideration by the Board. Best efforts shall be made for In the event the provisions of Section 6-1-330 of the SC Code (LOCAL FEE IMPOSITION LIMITATIONS), apply, public comment will be requested in accordance therewith. Tthe proposed Annual Budget is to be presented to the Board for its consideration no later than the first scheduled Board meeting in May. with approval of the Annual Budget shall be approved by the Board by no later than by June 30 of each year. Notice of the adoption of the Annual Budget will be provided in accordance with the provisions of Section 6-1-80 of the SC Code (BUDGET ADOPTION) South Carolina law.
- C. Budgets shall be prepared using the Cash Basis of Accounting at the department level and provide the basis for the OJRSA's financial management system. The adopted Annual Budget shall constitute the maximum expenditure authorization for a given fund and can be amended only by action of the Board.
- D. In drafting the Annual Budget and identifying multi-year costs, the expenditures shall be prioritized in accordance with the following:
 - 1. Maintenance or installation of devices, equipment, and systems that ensure a safe working environment for Eemployees and the public;
 - 2. Maintenance or installation of infrastructure or appurtenances to remain in compliance with applicable permits, laws, and regulations; and
 - 3. Installation of equipment and/or programs that reduce operating costs, such as increased utilization of technology, equipment, and proven business methods.
- E. The Executive Director will monitor the financial condition of OJRSA and estimate present and future financial needs. It will be the duty of the Executive Director to take action to bring the budget into balance if adjustments are needed in the course of a Fiscal Year. The Executive Director will provide to the Board monthly summary reports and detailed quarterly reports to the Board covering the operating results of OJRSA compared to the budget and prior year performance. All excess revenue collected by OJRSA that exceeds the projected budget revenue figure from a specific revenue category must be reported to the Board on a monthly basis.
- F. Department heads will be accountable for the implementation of department budgets in a manner that accomplishes the programs and objectives for which the budgets were authorized and ensuring that their respective budgets stay within the prescribed funding levels.
- G. Departments must adhere to the Annual Budget by each major expense category of personnel, operating, and capital: bBudget transfers or shifts in departmental budgets must be authorized by the Executive Director: provided that overall budget appropriations do not change without the approval of the Board.
- H. OJRSA will operate on a current funding basis which means expenditures shall be budgeted and controlled so as not to exceed current revenues plus the planned use of fund balances accumulated through prior years.
- I. Operating revenues are budgeted to be cash flow neutral. Operating revenues shall be equal or greater than operating expenses. Revenues will be estimated based on actual revenues during the last twelve (12) months in conjunction with <u>rate adjustments</u>, cost-of-service projections, and any projected customer growth-approved by the OJRSA Board on an annual basis. All other revenues will be based on actual revenues during the last twelve (12) months (adjusted for any Extraordinary Events).
- J. Expenses will generally be based on actual expenses during the last twelve (12) month period, and as necessary a cost-of-living factor (adjusted for any Extraordinary Events). Labor expenses will primarily be based on the current level of Eemployees, a cost-of-living adjustment as necessary, and any anticipated merit-based salary adjustments determined by the Executive Director and approved by the OJRSA-Board. All other expenses will be based on last twelve (12) months (adjusted for any Extraordinary Events).
- K. All operations are expected to be self-supporting. OJRSA will conduct an annual review of fee structures, charges for services, and other operating revenues and expenditures.
- L. Multi-year operating cost projections shall be prepared and updated each year to identify the impact of current decision making on future resources.
- M. For purposes of this Policy, the Cash Basis of Accounting is used in defining revenues and expenditures.

August 7, 2023

, 202

N. OJRSA will make every effort to maximize any discounts offered by creditors/vendors. Staff shall also use competitive bidding to attain the best possible price on goods and services in accordance with the OJRSA's procurement code.

2.6 REVENUES

- A. OJRSA will maximize and diversify its revenue base to raise sufficient revenue to support essential agency services and to maintain services. OJRSA must be sensitive to the balance between the need for services and the Member Cities'y's ability to raise fees to support those services.
- B. OJRSA shall conservatively estimate annual revenue increases.
- C. All surpluses above the budgeted revenue estimates will be available to OJRSA for appropriation through the agency's budget monitoring and approval processes. Additional appropriations will be used for activities that support the function or program generating the additional fees.
- D. Revenue shortfalls requiring the utilization of Restricted Fund resources will result in a current appropriation level reduction. In the event of a current Fiscal Year projected total revenue shortfall, OJRSA will document other offsetting revenues or reduce its Annual Budget within the regular budget monitoring process. TRANS-FERS FROM THE RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE TO COVER REVENUE SHORTFALLS IN THE RESTRICTED FUNDS SHALL NOT OCCUR WITHOUT BOARD AUTHORIZATION.
- E. Whenever possible, OJRSA will maintain a diversified and stable revenue base to reduce the effects of short-term fluctuations in any one revenue source.
- F. The Wholesale Operations and Maintenance Fund and the Retail Operations and Maintenance Fund shall be self-supporting. The Board will establish all user fees at a level related to the full costs (operating, direct, indirect, and capital) of providing the service. The Board will review these fees and charges annually in the Annual Budget process and target rates that meet the cost to provide the service.
- G. Charges for services that benefit specific users should recover full costs, including all direct costs, overhead, loss of earned interest, and depreciation on capital assets. When applicable for determining OJRSA costs, current Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Rate Schedules may be used, as well as the cost to rent comparable equipment needed to complete a function.
- H. Restricted Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than Debt Service or capital projects.
- I. One-time resources such as proceeds from asset sales, debt refinancing, one-time grants, revenue spikes, budget savings, and similar non-recurring revenue shall not be used for current or new ongoing operating expenses without the approval of the Board. Appropriate uses of one-time resources include:
 - 1. Rebuilding Unrestricted Fund reserves (fund balance);
 - 2. Establishing or rebuilding the Contingency Capital Projects Fund;
 - 3. Early retirement of debt; and
 - 4. Funding capital expenditures and/or other non-recurring expenditures.
- J. OJRSA will actively seek grant funding to benefit both operating and capital expenditures. Prior to the acceptance of grant funding, an evaluation of the grant must determine the following:
 - 1. The grant purpose is compatible with OJRSA program objectives;
 - 2. The benefits provided by the grant exceed the cost of administration-;
 - 3. The grant does not commit OJRSA to long-term, unaccounted for expenditures after the completion of the grant period; and-
 - 4. OJRSA will evaluate tThe cost and funding source to determine whether to continue the service when the grant period ends. The decision to continue to fund or drop the grant will be made prior to accepting the grant. Alternatively, OJRSA could choose to continue the service with other funding.

2.7 EXPENDITURES

A. Expenses will generally be based on actual expenses during the last twelve (12) month period, and as necessary a cost-of-living factor (adjusted for any Extraordinary Events). Labor expenses will primarily be based on the current level of employees with a cost-of-living increase and an improvement factor based on performance goals to be based annually. All other expenses will be based on last twelve (12) months (adjusted for any Extraordinary Events). An appropriate balance will be maintained between budget dollars provided for

August 7, 2023

, 2025

direct public services and dollars provided to assure good management and legal compliance. In addition to the Executive Director and the Board Secretary/Treasurer, all department heads share in the responsibility of understanding the agency's long-term financial viability, its general spending trends, its projected incomes, and educating themselves, and Eemployees on the necessary short and long-term balance between revenues and expenditures.

- B. All operations are expected to be self-supporting entities. OJRSA will conduct an annual review of fee structures, charges for services, and other operating revenues and expenditures.
- C. The annual expenditures (operating budget minus capital outlay) shall not exceed the annual revenues.
- D. When necessary In extraordinary circumstances, the Board may approve the use of fund balance in lieu of rate increases, to cover non-recurring or capital costs.
- E. Before OJRSA undertakes any Contracts that would create fixed ongoing expenses, the cost implications of such agreements Contracts will be estimated for current and future years with the aid of strategic financial planning models, when possible.

2.8 DEBT COMPLIANCE

- A. Adherence to this Policy will help assure access to the credit and capital markets and maintenance of the highest possible credit rating given the rating environment.
- B. Debt or bond financing shall not be used to finance operating expenditures.
- C. All bonds, notes, Contracts, accounts payable, and other monetary liabilities will be paid when due and shall have the most superior lien position during the allocation of resources in budget planning, as set forth in OJRSA's bond documents.
- D. Capital Projects, financed through the issuance of bonds or other means, shall be financed for a period not to exceed the expected useful life of the financed property.
- E. OJRSA will consider the use of lease-purchase financing for Ccapital Ooutlay of equipment and heavy vehicles having a useful life of at least three (3) years or more.
- F. OJRSA shall maintain and collect rates and charges so that the income therefrom is reasonably expected to yield annual net earnings equal to at least the sum of one hundred twenty percent (120%) of the annual Debt Service requirements for all parity bonds outstanding. To assure that this requirement and the overall financial goals and objectives of OJRSA are met, the desired minimum targeted Debt Service Coverage Ratio for any given Fiscal Year shall exceed one hundred twenty percent (120%).
- G. OJRSA will establish an appropriate mix of bonded debt and pay-as-you-go financing in the funding of its eCapital Pprojects.
- H. OJRSA seeks to minimize the protection from optional redemption given to bondholders, consistent with its desire to obtain the lowest possible interest rates on its debt. OJRSA bonds shall generally be subject to optional redemption. OJRSA seeks early calls at low or no premiums because such features have allowed it in the past to refinance debt more easily for Debt Service savings when interest rates dropped. OJRSA will annually evaluate optional redemption provisions for each issue to assure that OJRSA does not pay unacceptably higher interest rates to obtain such advantageous calls.
- I. OJRSA acknowledges its responsibility to meet its continuing disclosure obligations on a timely basis. The Executive Director and shall be authorized to provide any continuing disclosure materials on the OJRSA's behalf to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board's Electronic Municipal Markets Access EMMA-S system (EMMA) or any other information repository; continuing disclosure materials include, but are not limited to, audits, annual financial reporting, event notices, voluntary events and third-party information. To the extent OJRSA is not in compliance with its continuing disclosure requirements, it will immediately undertake actions to become compliant.
- J. OJRSA may employ outside financial specialists to assist it in developing a bond issuance strategy, preparing bond documents and marketing bonds to investors. The key players in the OJRSA's financing transactions include Bbond Ceounsel, financial advisor, underwriter(s) and OJRSA representatives (the Executive Director and

² Leases are subject to requirements established in <u>Title 6</u>, <u>Chapter 25 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976</u>, as amended (the "Joint Authority Water and Sewer Systems Act"). the Joint Authority Act. <u>OJRSA to Consult</u> with legal counsel prior to entering into any lease agreement as it may be considered as a debt that must be approved by the councils of the Member Cities.

August 7, 2023

, 202

other OJRSA representatives as may be appointed by the Executive Director). Other outside firms, such as those providing paying agent/registrar, trustee, credit enhancement, auditing, or printing services, are retained as required. The financing team will meet periodically or when necessary to review the overall financing strategy of the OJRSA and make recommendations to the Executive Director.

- K. Lease purchase financings may be considered before the use of Capital Improvement Fund (as described in Section 2.9 below) balance for capital equipment and fleet in conformance with governance documents.³
- L. <u>As applicable</u>, OJRSA may enter into <u>Ceontracts</u> with terms exceeding one (1) year so long as the <u>Ceontract</u> is subject to appropriation of available funds by OJRSA during its annual budget process.

2.9 Capital Improvement Program

- A. OJRSA desires to create a ten (10) year financial forecast that will include projections for annual growth plus allowances for operating costs of new capital facilities. The forecast should be updated annually as part of the Annual Budget process. The forecast will provide the financial health of all major funds and assess the financial implications of current and proposed policies, programs, and assumptions. The forecast will include potential alternatives to improving the long-term financial health of the agency.
- B. The Board will establish a Capital Improvement Fund (titled a.k.a. the "Projects & Contingency Fund," as well as others that may be created in accordance with Section 2.4) and designate said funds for the implementation of Capital Projects. As provided under Section 2.9 herein, tOJRSA he agency will prepare and adopt a ten (10) year Capital Improvement Plan, which shall be reviewed annually with the Annual Budget and revised, as necessary, that will detail each Ceapital pProject, the estimated cost, and funding source.
- C. Operating expenditures will be programmed to include the cost of implementing the Capital Improvement Plan as required.
- D. Capital Projects shall be completed and purchased on a regular schedule.
- E. Pursuant to South Carolina law and OJRSA's bond documents, and within the constraints of operating budgets, debt, including bonds and leases in compliance with Section 2.8 above, may be issued for the purchase of Capital Projects, including major renovations.
- F. An amount determined annually by the Board may be deposited into the Capital Improvement Fund from the Annual Budget.
- G. Facilities whose construction or acquisition results in new or substantially increased operating costs will be considered only after an assessment indicates a clear need for the project and resources for funding the increased operating costs are available.
- H. All proposals for the expenditure of capital funds will be formulated and presented to the Board within the framework of a general capital budget. Except in circumstances of any emergency nature, no consideration is given to the commitment of any capital funds in without a prior general review of all capital budget requirements.

2.10 Depository and Investment Policy

- A. This Policy mandates pursuit of the following overall goals and objectives: all aspects of cash management operations shall be designed to ensure the absolute safety and integrity of OJRSA's financial assets; and the overall financial objective is to provide the highest possible income support to the OJRSA and present a very low risk of loss of principal. OJRSA's banking and investment policy is in conformance with all federal, state, and local governing legislation, the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA)GFOA best practices and other legal requirements and applies to the depositing and investment of all funds, excluding the investment of eEmployees' retirement funds.
- B. When allowed, OJRSA will consolidate cash and reserve balances from all funds to maximize investment earnings and to increase efficiencies with regard to investment pricing, safekeeping, and administration.
- C. The Board may elect to participate in the South Carolina State Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP)LGIP to acquire maximum returns on investments by pooling available funds with funds from other political subdivisions through the South Carolina Treasurer's Office as permitted by the Code. INVESTMENTS SOURCED

³ Leases are subject to requirements established in the Joint Authority Water and Sewer Systems Act. OJRSA to C consult with legal counsel prior to entering into any lease agreement as it may be considered as a debt that must be approved by the councils of the Member Cities.

August 7, 2023

, 2025

OUTSIDE OF LGIP SHALL BE <u>PROPERLY COLLATERALIZED</u> <u>WITH DOMESTICALLY-OWNED SECURITIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH SOUTH CAROLINA LAW WITH DOMESTICALLY OWED SECURITIES.</u>

- D. Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. The objective will be to mitigate credit risk and interest rate risk.
- E. All investments shall be consistent with this Policy and consistent with GFOA policies and statements.
- F. The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating and accounts payable requirements that may be reasonably anticipated.
- G. At all times, OJRSA shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet cash flow requirements by matching investment maturities with forecasted cash flow requirements, investing in securities with active secondary markets, and maintaining appropriate portfolio diversification. Reserves and funds not required for the maintenance of a positive cash flow position within the next six (6) months (time deposits held in savings accounts or as certificates of deposits) will be maintained in accounts bearing the highest interest rates available to OJRSA, taking into account potential interest rate and credit risk, provided that such accounts are secured from risk as provided by law. Where practicable, such accounts will be structured to ensure availability of funds without incurring unnecessary penalties upon withdrawal. Where practicable, accounts should be structured to maximize FDIC coverage, and where FDIC coverage is not available, such excess funds shall be appropriately collateralized.
- H. The minimum balances have been established as follows:
 - 1. Wholesale Operations and Maintenance Fund: One hundred twenty (120) days cash on hand;
 - 2. Retail Operations and Maintenance Fund: One hundred twenty (120) <u>Ddays Qoperating eCash Qon</u> Hhand.
 - 3. "Days Operating Cash on Hand" shall be determined under the following formula:
 - $= \frac{Cash \ and \ Cash \ Equivalents + Nonrestricted \ Investments}{((Annual \ Operating \ Expense Depreciation) \div 365 \ Days)}$
- I. <u>To the extent FDIC insurance is not available, Full-collateralization will be required on all demand deposit accounts, including checking accounts and non-negotiable certificates of deposit.</u>
- J. The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the investment risk constraints and liquidity needs.
- K. Officers and <u>Eemployees</u> involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with the proper execution and management of the investment program, or that could impair their ability to make impartial decisions.
- L. The Executive Director or his/her designee is authorized to manage the investment portfolio.
- M. A list will be maintained by the Office Manager and Board Secretary/Treasurer of all financial institutions and depositories authorized to provide investment services for OJRSA.
- N. All financial institutions and broker/dealers who desire to become qualified for investment transactions must supply the following as appropriate:
 - 1. Proof of Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) certification (not applicable to certificate of deposit counterparties).
 - 2. Proof of state registration.
 - 3. Certification of having read and understood and agreeing to comply with SECTION 2.10 herein.
 - <u>4.</u> Evidence of adequate insurance coverage.

2.11 SURPLUS PROPERTY

- A. Surplus Property, which have little or no salvage value, considering the cost of disposing of same, such as older model computers and printers, may be offered to employees at nominal prices, as established by the department head upon the approval of the Executive Director, before other means of disposition are considered.
- B. Surplus Property with salvage value, but which are likely to bring little at a conventional auction, may be sold through an internet site such as www.govdeals.com or any other reputable internet site or auction service which the Executive Director or designated department head has determined will offer the most exposure to potential interested buyers, or which will likely result in the highest return for OJRSA.

August 7, 2023

, 2025

- C. Surplus Property with trade-in value may also be traded-in to a dealer or vendor in exchange for, or toward the purchase of, items needed by a Department of OJRSA.
- D. Surplus Property may also be sold to, traded with or donated to other governmental entities, if such arrangement is determined by the Executive Director to be in the best interests of OJRSA.

SECTION 3- INTERNAL CONTROLS

3.1 Organization Review and Approval of Finances

- A. OJRSA The Finance & Administration Committee ("F&A Committee") F&A Committee is tasked with reviewing and approving monthly and year-to-date financial reports. If the F&A Committee fails to meet to review, discuss, and approve reports, this function shall be performed by the full Board.
- B. Discussions regarding financial matters should be documented in the appropriate meeting's minutes.

3.2 FINANCIAL

- A. Comparisons of budgeted and actual revenues and expenditures are made in monthly and year-to-date financial reports.
- B. When practical, compare results with actual year-to-date results from the same period in the prior year.
- C. Checks and payments made should have accompanying documentation when reviewed and signed.
- D. Invoices should be approved and signed off on (or initialed) before payment in accordance with the OJRSA Procurement Policy.
- E. Only original invoices should be paid to avoid duplication of payment.
- F. Have fidelity bond coverage to protect against losses caused by acts of fraud or dishonesty.

3.3 RECONCILIATION

- A. OJRSA shall utilize an independent firm knowledgeable in accounting to conduct monthly reconciliations of all OJRSA accounts.
- B. All reconciliations should be reviewed by the Executive Director.
- C. Reconciliation reports shall be presented by the Board Secretary/Treasurer to the F&A Committee or Board at a scheduled monthly meeting as stated in Section 3.1 above.

3.4 AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES AND APPROVERS

Signatory authority and powers shall be limited to the individuals included in **Error! Not a valid bookmark self-reference**. Table 1 below:

August 7, 2023

, 2025

Table 1: Authorized signers for financial transactions and documents

Authority	Authorized Signers	Limited Signers	Financial Signer
Sign checks and initiate stop payment orders4	Yes	Yes	<u>No</u>
Initiate stop payment orders ⁵	<u>Yes</u>	<u>Yes</u>	<u>Yes</u>
Make deposits at a bank branch	Yes	Yes	<u>Yes</u>
Withdraw cash and obtain cashier's checks ⁶	Yes	No	<u>No</u>
Perform bank branch and online transactions, including payments and wires	Yes	No	Yes
Perform bank account maintenance	Yes	No	<u>Yes</u>
Open and close bank accounts, and sign deposits and other legal financial documents	Yes	No	<u>No</u>
Other banking responsibilities not defined within this Table ⁷	Yes	No	Yes
Execute contracts and binding documents	Yes	No	<u>No</u>
Requisition and Purchase Order	As stated in OJRSA	A Procurement and	
authorization	Disposal of Pi	roperty Policy	
Purchase vehicles or equipment	As stated in OJRSA		
	Disposal of Pi	roperty Policy	

A. Authorized Signers shall mean the Board Chair (or acting Board Chair) and the Executive Director. These individuals shall possess all authority described in Table 1.

B. Limited Signers shall mean the F&A Committee Chair and Operation and Planning Committee Chair. These individuals shall possess all authority described in Table 1.

C. Signatory power shall be limited to the individuals included in Table 1.

3.5 Processes and Procedures

- A. OJRSA should use prenumbered documents for easier tracking, such as purchase orders, invoices, and checks.
- B. Policies should be communicated throughout the staff and Board. Training should be conducted for all staff upon hiring and as policies change.
- C. OJRSA will establish and maintain accounting systems according to the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and standards of the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
- D. An annual audit will be performed and completed no longer than six (6) months from the end of the prior Fiscal Year by an independent public accounting firm selected by the Board that will issue an official opinion on the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) with a management letter detailing areas that need improvement, if required.
- E. Full disclosure will be provided in the financial statements and bond representations.
- F. A management letter, the byproduct of an annual audit, shall be presented by the independent certified public accounting firm no later than sixty (60) days from issuance of OJRSA's ACFR.
- G. Financial systems will be maintained to monitor expenditures and revenues on a monthly basis with a thorough analysis and adjustment quarterly, if required.
- H. All revenue collections are the responsibility of the Executive Director or his/her designee.
- I. OJRSA will maintain an internal control system that safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurances (e.g., noting any changes in finance statements) for the proper recording of the financial transactions of OJRSA.

⁴ Requires two signatures.

⁵ Requires two signatures.

⁶ Requires two signatures.

⁷ Until defined as policy by the Board.

August 7, 2023 , 2025

3.6 FINANCIAL SIGNER AUTHORITY

In addition to the signatory authority for the Financial Signer provided in Section 3.4 above, the Financial Signer shall have the authority to perform the following duties in regard to banking activities on a daily basis without prior or separate approval from an Authorized Signer or Limited Signer: (i) initiate stop payment orders; (ii) make deposits at a bank branch, including delegation of such function to records clerk, as needed or convenient; (iii) creating online payments, which are approved for payment online by the Authorized Signer; (iv) paying credit card bills online, includes transfer of funds. However, all such payments shall be approved via "OJRSA Electronic Payment Summary & Authorization" transmittal signed/approved by Authorized Signer; (v) selection, purchase, trade-In, and cancellation of legally authorized investments, as described and authorized herein, for all bank accounts; (vi) transfer of credit card payments to appropriate account due to software limitations of credit card service merchant; and (vii) segregation and distribution of fees to proper accounts when paid by a customer in a lump sum (e.g. payment of engineering, inspection, and connection fees with one (1) check. Payment is initially deposited into the permitting account (WIF), but requires segregation and further disbursement to Wholesale Operations & Maintenance Fund). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Financial Signer shall inform an Authorized Signer of any of the foregoing actions in writing (include electronic mail) within one (1) business day of any of the authorized banking activities described herein.

|---

<u>SECTION 4 – TAX COMPLIANCE</u>

4.1 TAX POLICIES

SECTION 4 establishes the policies and procedures (the "Tax Policies") in connection with the issuance of tax-exempt and tax-advantaged obligations of OJRSA ("Bonds" or "Bond Issue") in order to maximize the likelihood that all applicable post-issuance requirements of federal income tax law needed to preserve the tax-exempt or tax-advantaged status of such Bonds are satisfied. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined are intended to have the meanings given to such terms in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "IRS Code") and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder (the "Regulations").

SECTION 4 is intended to supplement the specific representations and covenants of OJRSA set forth in the tax certificate, tax regulatory agreement, or similar tax document ("Tax Agreement") executed by OJRSA in connection with the issuance of a particular issue of Bonds. The individual(s) identified below as responsible for particular compliance duties shall have read, and shall periodically review, the applicable provisions of each Tax Agreement that relate to such duties, and shall consult with Bond Counsel to the extent that the tax law requirements set forth in a Tax Agreement, or their application to the facts, are not clear. (The OJRSA-Board, in connection with Bond Counsel, may supplement this Section 4 from time to time with Exhibits setting forth specific timing requirements and other summary checklists relating to the compliance requirements of particular Bond issues.)

4.2 RESPONSIBILITY

The Responsible Official shall provide a copy of these Tax Policies to OJRSA's auditors and shall instruct such auditors to report to the Responsible Official from time to time any matters the auditors believe relevant to the matters addressed herein.

4.3 TRAINING

OJRSA shall provide appropriate training to the Responsible Official and any other individuals responsible for carrying out compliance duties under Section 4 sufficient to enable such individuals to perform those duties. Training may include conference calls or meetings with Bond Counsel to report on issues and questions that arise from time to time in connection with Section 4 and for Bond Counsel to report on developments affecting the IRS Code and Regulations and their enforcement that may be relevant to the development and implementation of Section 4.

August 7, 2023

, 2025

4.4 EXPENDITURE OF BOND PROCEEDS

Until all of the proceeds of a Bond issue have been spent (other than any proceeds deposited in a reserve fund or debt service fund), the Responsible Official shall periodically prepare a written record of the expenditures to date of all proceeds of the Bonds (an "Interim Expenditure Report"), noting any material departures in either timing or use from the original expectations for such expenditures set forth in the applicable Tax Agreement, as well as whether or not any applicable spending targets for arbitrage rebate exceptions have been met. The Responsible Official shall prepare the first such Interim Expenditure Report within six (6) months of the issuance of the Bond issue and at least every six (6) months thereafter until the delivery of the Final Expenditure Report described further below. In preparing such Interim Expenditure Reports, the Responsible Official shall consult as appropriate with Bond Counsel (including, among other things, as to the appropriate level of detail to be used in describing expenditures).

The Responsible Official shall be responsible for determining when all the proceeds of any Bond issue have been spent (other than those held in a reserve fund or debt service fund) and shall take steps to close out with reasonable promptness all project and similar funds holding proceeds of Bonds. If any proceeds together with investment earnings thereon (together, "Remaining Proceeds") remain after paying all expected costs of the projects financed, the Responsible Official shall consult with Bond Counsel as to possible ways to apply such proceeds and their investment and use, with the goal of spending all Remaining Proceeds as promptly as is required by law. Within sixty (60) days of the final expenditure or other disposition of all Remaining Proceeds, the Responsible Official shall prepare a written report (the "Final Expenditure Report") on the expenditure of all proceeds of the Bonds (inclusive of investment earnings), including the use of such proceeds and the schedule of such expenditures, together with any allocations or elections made in connection therewith. Such report also shall address whether rebatable arbitrage must be calculated and paid and on what schedule.

If a particular facility or improvement is only partially financed with proceeds of Bonds, the Responsible Official shall indicate in the report the percentages of each such facility or improvement attributable to equity, the proceeds of Bonds or other sources, including any permitted allocations or reallocations (which, to be valid, must be made within eighteen (18) months following the date the facility or improvement is first "placed in service" and in no event any later than the date sixty (60) days after the fifth (5th) anniversary of the issue date of the Bond issue in question).

4.5 REIMBURSEMENTS

The Responsible Official shall ensure that any use of Bond proceeds to reimburse OJRSA for expenditures made by OJRSA before the issue date of the Bonds in question either satisfies the following timing requirements or is covered by one of the exceptions described below:

- A. <u>Date of Payment being Reimbursed</u>. The expenditure being reimbursed was made no earlier than sixty (60) days before OJRSA adopted a reimbursement resolution that generally described the project to which the expenditure relates and that stated the maximum expected principal amount of the anticipated Bond issue. If no reimbursement resolution was adopted, the expenditure was made no earlier than sixty (60) days before the adoption or enactment of the bond resolution or ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Bond issue in question.
- B. <u>Date of Reimbursement</u>. The reimbursement is made no later than eighteen (18) months after the date the related project is "placed in service," and in any event no later than three (3) years after the date the expenditure that is being reimbursed was made.
- C. <u>Exception for "Preliminary Expenditures."</u> The preceding timing restrictions do not apply to the reimbursement of "preliminary expenditures," up to an amount that does not exceed twenty percent (20%) of the issue price of the Bond issue in question. "Preliminary expenditures" include architectural, engineering, surveying, soil testing, bond issuance costs, and similar "soft" costs incurred prior to the commencement of acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of a project, but do not include land acquisition, site preparation, and similar

⁸ An asset is "placed in service" when (1.) it has reached a degree of completion which would permit its operation at substantially its design level and (2.) the asset is, in fact, operating at such level.

August 7, 2023

, 2025

- costs incident to the commencement of construction.
- D. <u>De Minimis Exception</u>. The timing restrictions described above do not apply to the reimbursement of other costs that do not exceed the lesser of five percent (5%) of the proceeds of the Bond issue or one hundred thousand dollars (\$100,000). (This exception is in addition to the exception for "preliminary expenditures.")

In addition, the Responsible Official shall ensure that moneys paid to OJRSA to reimburse prior expenditures are not used to create a Sinking Fund within a year of the reimbursement and shall consult with Bond Counsel as to any use of reimbursement payments to create any Sinking Fund.

4.6 Use of Bond-Financed Facilities; Limits on Private Business Use

OJRSA shall ensure that there is no threat to the tax-exempt or tax-advantaged status of any Bond issue resulting from impermissible "private business uses" of Bond-financed property. Such a threat could arise if more than ten percent (10%)⁹ of the property financed with the proceeds of a Bond issue is used in the trade or business of any person – including the federal government – that is not a state or local governmental entity. (Use by the general public does not constitute private business use.) "Use" for this purpose could result from the ownership or lease of Bond-financed property, from certain contracts to manage the property, from contracts to purchase the output of the property, or from arrangements that give a private party special legal entitlements with respect to the property (e.g., priority rights or other legal rights to control the use of the property).

The Responsible Official shall maintain accurate records of the property financed with the proceeds of each Bond issue, which records shall be updated at least once a year to reflect any conveyances or leases of any part of such property, as well as any management contracts with respect to the property, and any other arrangements involving any special legal rights with respect to the property (e.g., output contracts or naming rights). Such records shall determine at least once a year whether the aggregate level of private business use of the property financed with each outstanding Bond issue is within the applicable ten percent 10%) (or five percent (5%)) percent limitation, and whether there is a foreseeable risk that such limitation may be exceeded in the future. The Responsible Official shall consult with Bond Counsel as appropriate to determine whether particular arrangements (such as leases, output contracts, and management agreements) involve "private business use" (whenever possible, before entering into such arrangements), to consider steps that may be taken to limit potential private business use (such as modifications to the terms of management contracts and output contracts), and as to a determination of the overall level of private business use.

In the event any arrangement or disposition of property results in excessive private business use of Bond-financed property, OJRSA will, to the extent possible, take such remedial steps as may be permitted under Section 1.141-12 of the Regulations, including a redemption of a portion of the outstanding Bond issue, in order to maintain the intended tax treatment of the Bonds; and the Responsible Official will consult with Bond Counsel concerning such remedial actions.

4.7 Arbitrage and Rebate

OJRSA shall have covenanted in the Tax Agreement entered into with respect to each Bond issue (1 $_{\text{-}}$) that proceeds of the Bond issue will be invested in accordance with the applicable arbitrage yield-restriction requirements under section 148(a) of the IRS Code and (2 $_{\text{-}}$) that OJRSA will on a timely basis (a $_{\text{-}}$) determine the amount of any rebate liability accrued with respect to the Bond issue under section 148(f) of the IRS Code and (b $_{\text{-}}$) make the requisite payments (if any) of that rebate liability to the federal government.

A. <u>Yield Restriction</u>. The Responsible Official shall monitor the investment of Bond proceeds to ensure that no proceeds that are subject to yield restriction are invested at a yield that is "materially higher" ¹⁰ than the yield

⁹ This limitation is reduced to five percent (5%) if the private use is either "unrelated" or "disproportionate" to the governmental (including general public) use of the property in question, as those terms are defined in the Regulations. Private use is "disproportionate" only if it exceeds the governmental use of the property. Bond Counsel should be consulted as to whether a particular use would be treated as "unrelated" to the governmental use of the property.

¹⁰ Generally, one-eighth of a percent (0.125%) above the Bond yield.

August 7, 2023

, 2025

on the Bond issue in question and shall maintain accurate records (including applicable bank and trust account statements) as to the investment of all Bond proceeds. The Bond proceeds, if any, that are subject to yield restriction will generally be identified as such in the applicable Tax Agreement.

B. <u>Rebate</u>. Any rebate liability with respect to a Bond issue must be reported and paid (at least in part) no later than sixty (60) days following the fifth (5th) anniversary of the issue date of the Bond issue, every five (5) years thereafter while the Bond issue is outstanding, and within sixty (60) days following the final maturity of the Bond issue.

The Responsible Official shall determine at least annually whether the services of a rebate analyst ¹¹ ("Rebate Analyst") are required with respect to each outstanding Bond issue and, if such services are required, shall provide the Rebate Analyst with all investment and other records necessary for the Rebate Analyst to determine the amount of rebate that is payable or accrued with respect to a Bond issue. (In some cases, the relevant Bond documents may provide that periodic reports from a Rebate Analyst are mandatory.)

At least every six (6) months while there are any unspent Bond proceeds of an issue (other than proceeds in a reserve fund or debt service fund), the Responsible Official shall record the amount of such unspent proceeds as of the relevant target dates (generally, the date every six (6) months following the issue date of the Bond issue in question) in order to monitor whether any spend-down exception to the arbitrage rebate rules is available. (Such information may be incorporated in the Interim and Final Expenditures Reports described in Section 4.4 above.) With respect to each Bond issue, the applicable dates and required spend-down amounts will typically be set forth in the Tax Agreement for that Bond issue.

- C. Reserve Funds. Even if a Bond issue otherwise qualified for a spend-down exception to rebate, amounts held in a debt service reserve fund will generally remain subject to the arbitrage rebate requirements. With respect to any Bond issue that has a debt service reserve fund, the Responsible Official shall, at least once a year, make a determination and record (1.) the current balance held in any reserve fund, (2.) whether that balance exceeds the amount excluded from yield restriction under Section 1.148-2(f) of the Regulations, and (3.) the amount, if any, of arbitrage earnings on such fund as of each such date. The Responsible Official shall consult with Bond Counsel as to the proper disposition amounts held in a reserve fund in excess of the amount permitted under Section 1.148-2(f) of the Regulations described in the preceding sentence.
- D. <u>Other Transactions</u>. Because the following transactions may have arbitrage or rebate consequences (or, in some cases, may result in the "reissuance" of a Bond issue), the Responsible Official shall consult with Bond Counsel before:
 - 1. Investing any Bond proceeds in a guaranteed investment contract (with respect to which certain "3-bid" and other procedural requirements may apply);
 - 2. Pledging any funds as collateral security for the payment of debt service on the Bond issue;
 - 3. Entering into any swap or other hedging transaction with respect to the Bonds; or
 - 4. Modifying the interest rate on a Bond issue (other than the periodic modifications resulting automatically under a specified variable interest rate) or extending the timing of required principal payments on a Bond issue.

4.8 AVAILABILITY OF VCAP AS REMEDIAL ACTION

In the event OJRSA's periodic reviews of the matters set forth in Section 4 indicate at any time that the use of Bond proceeds or of Bond-financed property has not complied with the applicable requirements of the IRS Code (e.g., with respect to arbitrage yield-restriction, arbitrage rebate payments, permitted expenditures of Bond proceeds, or limitations on the "private business use" of Bond-financed property, among other requirements outlined

¹¹ The Rebate Analyst may be an accounting or law firm with experience calculating arbitrage rebate or a financial service firm that specializes in such calculations.

August 7, 2023

, 2025

herein), OJRSA will consult with Bond Counsel as to whether use of the Internal Revenue Service's Voluntary Closing Agreement Program (VCAP), described in *IRS Notice 2008-31* and Section 7.2.3 of the *Internal Revenue Manual* (and any subsequent guidance) may be an appropriate means of resolving the problem.

4.9 RECORDS TO BE MAINTAINED

OJRSA will maintain (either in paper or electronic form, or both) copies of all relevant records relating to each Bond issue until at least three (3) years after the latter of: (1-) the final maturity of the Bond issue or (2) the final maturity of any tax-exempt obligations issued to refund the Bond issue.

Such records shall include the following for each Bond issue:

- A. The Bond transcript, including copies of the Tax Agreement and <u>8038-G</u> (or other) form filed with the IRS in connection with the Bond issue;
- B. Records of the investment and expenditure of Bond proceeds, including applicable bank and trust account statements, the Interim Expenditure Reports and Final Expenditure Report described above in Section 4.4 of these Tax Policies, and supporting records showing the purpose of particular expenditures (such as draw requests, purchase orders, invoices, and the like);
- C. Contracts and other records documenting any swaps, investment contracts, guarantees, and other financial transactions entered into with respect to the Bond issue;
- D. Copies of rebate calculations (or determinations that an exception to rebate was available), together with supporting workpapers, any reports of a Rebate Analyst, and copies of any and all filings (on form <u>8038-T</u> or otherwise) and payments to the IRS with respect to rebate;
- E. Copies of any correspondence with the IRS concerning the Bond issue (including but not limited to correspondence relating to an audit or other examination by the IRS of the Bond issue); and
- F. Copies of any and all leases, management contracts, output contracts, and other arrangements involving potential "private business use" of the Bond-financed property (the scope of which should be discussed with Bond Counsel).

4.10 CERTAIN QUALIFICATIONS.

OJRSA reserves the right to use its discretion as necessary and appropriate, in consultation with Bond Counsel, to amend or supplement Section 4 as situations warrant. Nothing herein shall authorize the Responsible Official or anyone else to consult with any lawyer unless such consultation is protected by the attorney-client privilege.

SECTION 5 – ACCOUNTING

5.1 ACCOUNTING METHODOLOGY

The method of accounting used by OJRSA on an annual basis is the FFull aAccrual bBasis of Aaccounting.

5.2 ELECTRONIC ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND RECEIVABLES

- A. OJRSA shall pay all vendors that receive electronic payments either directly through the vendor's website, via ACH payments using the OJRSA banking institution's website, which offers fraud protection, or other electronic means as approved by the Executive Director.
- B. All electronic payments will be documented in a manner that shall include the following where applicable: vendor's name, purchase order, invoice number, summary of service or items purchased, purchase cost, and general ledger code chargeable against. This documentation will be signed by two individuals with either authorized or limited signatory power in accordance with Section 3.4.
- C. Purchase orders shall be required for all goods and non-contracted services received by OJRSA and shall comply with the OJRSA Procurement and Property Disposal Policy.
- D. Any vendor that does not accept electronic payments will continue to be paid via paper check through the using the current policies for payments.
- E. The OJRSA will provide all vendors that want to make electronic payments with the OJRSA's bank account information as necessary to complete the deposit.

August 7, 2023

, 2025

5.3 CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

- A. OJRSA capital assets are stated at historical cost.
- B. The agency capitalizes purchases of assets greater than five thousand dollars (\$5,000).
- C. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.
- D. Depreciation of capital assets is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets as stated in Table 2.

Table 2: Types and descriptions of capital assets

Asset Life Asset Types Asset Categories Examples (in years) **Buildings General Structures** 40 Offices, pump stations, workshops Water Reclamation Facility 40 Structures, piping Other Substantial Aboveground 40 Covered storage, tanks, vaults, basins Structures or Enclosures **Conveyance System Inflow & Infiltration Repairs** 20 Grout injection, manhole rehabilitation Inflow & Infiltration Replacement 40 Replacement of line segments, CIPP, manhole replacement **Pipelines** 40 Gravity sewer, force mains, manholes Sewer Appurtenances 40 Manholes, ARVs Wetwells Wet wells, valve pits, reservoirs Tanks and Vaults Equipment Control Systems and SCADA 10 Programming, meters, telemetry, specific electrical for system, control panels, PLCs **Electrical Equipment** 20 Motors, generators, motor control centers, lighting, conduit General Mechanical Equipment 20 **HVAC** Heavy Construction and Off-Road 10 Backhoes, excavators, utility tractors, Equipment forklifts Mechanical Equipment 20 Pumps, chains, fans, valves, etc. Sewer Inspection and Maintenance 7 CCTV, cleaning, and testing Equipment **Land and Easements** Land Infinite Real estate Infinite¹² Easements and Rights-of-Way (intangible assets) Other General Consultation and 5 Services Master planning **Engineering Studies** 20 **Specific Project Consultation Services** and Engineering (if implemented or constructed) **Specific Project Consultation Services** 5 and Engineering (if not implemented or constructed) **Vehicles** Light-Duty Off-Road Vehicles UTVs, golf carts On-Road Commercial Vehicle 10 Dump truck, road tractor, pump truck On-Road Vehicles 7 Trucks, SUVs, cars 7 Other Assets Furniture and Fixtures Desks, chairs, cubicles Leasehold Assets and Improvements Term of Lease Office Equipment and Machines 4 Computers, servers, plotters, software systems

¹² Intangible assets consisting of rights-of-way and easements are recorded as capital assets at cost and considered to have an indefinite useful life; therefore, they are not amortized. If changes in factors and conditions result in the useful life of an intangible asset and it is no longer indefinite (e.g., abandon an easement), then the asset is evaluated for impairment because the change in the expected duration of use of the asset has occurred. The carrying value of the intangible asset, if any, following the recognition of any impairment loss, is amortized over the remaining estimated useful life of the asset.

August 7, 2023 , 2025

- E. Assets that have been donated, transferred, sold, junked, or abandoned-in-place in accordance with the *OJRSA Procurement and Disposal Policy* shall be accounted for during the fiscal year in which they are removed at selling price or book value or as directed by OJRSA auditor or accountant.
- F. The cost of fully depreciated assets and the related accumulated depreciation amounts are eliminated from the accounts, whether the assets are retired or continue in service.
- G. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the life of the asset are not capitalized.

5.4 Insurance and Damage Reimbursements

- A. It is the policy of the OJRSA to reimburse the general ledger line items in the funds associated with the expense(s) incurred as a result of the damage.
- B. If an Insurance and Damage Reimbursement for damages is received during the same Accounting Period during which the expenses were incurred, the proper amount will be credited to each fund and general ledger line item that paid for the expense and will not be considered revenue. Examples include:
 - 1. If an insured vehicle is involved in a wreck and the OJRSA paid for repairs using funds designated to the Repair and Maintenance of Rolling Stock and Equipment in the budget, then the Reimbursement received from the insurance company will be credited to that general ledger line item.
 - 2. Natural Disaster or Third-Party Damage Affecting Pump Station: If damage occurs at an insured pump station, then any insurance or FEMA reimbursements received for expenses incurred by the OJRSA will be credited to the general ledger line item(s) in the fund(s) that paid the expenses. This could include a credit for Payroll Salary and Wages and Overtime for labor, Conveyance System Repair & Maintenance for equipment replacement, etc.
- C. If the Insurance and Damage Reimbursement is received after the end of the Accounting Period in which the expenses were paid, then the amount received will be considered Other Revenue in the fund(s) which paid the expense(s).

5.5 CONSUMABLES, INVENTORY, AND CHEMICAL ACCOUNTING SYSTEM.

- A. It is the policy of the OJRSA to maintain accountability over all tangible items that may have the likelihood of disappearing without being noticed or accounted for.
- B. Any item with a per unit cost of less than five hundred dollars (\$500) and a combined maximum value of five thousand dollars (\$5,000) is not considered Inventory unless it is deemed a "Vital" or "Essential" Inventory as defined in the DEFINITIONS section, including:
 - Consumables Items not included in the definition of Inventory and are not replaced or are finished
 in a process, such as janitorial items, toilet paper, batteries, light bulbs, and gloves. Consumables are
 usually scrapped when they have failed. <u>Consumables do not include fuels, oils, or lubricants pur-</u>
 chased or stored in any size vessel.
 - 2. Desirable Inventory An item that would not cause any problems if not on hand in the moment and are typically stocked by or can easily be fabricated by vendors. Examples include bearings, gauges, and belts.
 - 3. Process Chemicals Items not included in the definition of Inventory and are liquid or gaseous chemicals used solely for the purpose of treating wastewater and biosolids that is purchased in individual bulk quantities greater than fifty (50) gallons or one hundred (100) pounds, such as chlorine gas, sodium hypochlorite, sodium bisulfite, peracetic acid, and liquid polymer. <a href="Process Chemicals does not include chemicals purchased in bags (such as lime or dry polymer) or fuels, oils, or lubricants purchased or stored in any size vessel.
 - 4. Lab Chemicals Items not included in the definition of Inventory and are solid, liquid, or gaseous chemicals and associated labware used for compliance monitoring or process control in the OJRSA laboratory, such as pH solution, acids, sodium hydroxide, and *E. coli* bottles.
 - 5. Other Items such as bushings, ball valves, electrical relays, and basic plumbing parts.
- C. Any <u>e</u>Employee who purchases an Inventory stock item must follow the standard *OJRSA Procurement and Property Disposal Policy* and use a purchase order as established by the Executive Director.

August 7, 2023

, 2025

- D. When an employee is required to use an Inventory stock item, the employee shall document the removal of such item through the work order maintenance software system (WOMSS). If the WOMSS is unavailable, the employee shall use the Parts Room Checkout Sheet. This documentation shall provide the name of the moved; the Part Identification Number, description, and quantity removed; and the location where the part will be used.
- E. At the beginning of each month, the Office Manager or their designee will gather the documented information to verify the monetary value of all Inventory removed. This information will then be submitted to the Office Manager for entry into the accounting software system.
- F. The Office Manager or their designee shall conduct a physical Inventory verification twice a year, once at the end of the first six (6) months of the Ffiscal YYear (on or around December 31) and at the end of the fFiscal YYear (on or around June 30). The results of the physical Linventory verification will be updated by the Office Manager in the accounting software system.

* * * * *

August 7, 2023

, 2025

REVISION HISTORY

This and previous editions must be maintained in accordance with the OJRSA Records Retention Policy.

Table 3: OJRSA Financial and Accounting Policy revision history

Revision Number	Date	Description of Changes
General	11/03/2008	OJRSA Resolution 2008/36 regarding investments.
General	02/02/2009	OJRSA Resolution 2009/3 regarding receivables.
General	04/05/2010	OJRSA Resolution 2010/17 regarding Capital Projects Fund.
General	06/07/2010	OJRSA Resolution 2010/24 regarding GASB 45.
General	12/02/2013	OJRSA Resolution 2013-22 regarding request to Member Cities to agree or disagree to Rescind the Revenue Sharing Agreement dated 11/18/2008 and filed with the Oconee County Register of Deeds in Book 1709 at page 5 (see page 92 of 139).
General	05/07/2018	OJRSA Resolution 2018-01 regarding grant-in-aid program for Member Cities.
General	03/04/2020	OJRSA Resolution 2020-01 regarding spare parts, consumables, and process chemicals inventory accounting system.
General	03/04/2020	OJRSA Resolution 2020-02 regarding Linsurance and Delamage rReimbursements.
General	09/14/2020	OJRSA Resolution 2021-04 regarding electronic accounts payables and receivables.
General	06/07/2021	OJRSA Resolution 2021-13 regarding capital assets and depreciation.
0000	08/07/2023	Initial issue of comprehensive OJRSA Financial and Accounting Policy by OJRSA Resolution 2024-01
0001	/2025	Limited revisions to add authority for Financial Signer and Budget functions by OJRSA Resolution 2025-XX



FINANCIAL & ACCOUNTING POLICY

, 2025

_____, 2025

Table of Contents

Definitions, Construction, Acronyms, and Format	1
Definitions	1
Construction	3
Acronyms and Abbreviations	4
Document Format	4
Section 1 – Purpose and Adoption	4
Section 2 – Financial Matters	4
2.1 Fiscal Year	4
2.2 Unrestricted Funds and Accounts	5
2.3 Restricted Funds and Accounts	5
2.4 Creating and Closing Additional Accounts	5
2.5 Annual Budget	5
2.6 Revenues	6
2.7 Expenditures	7
2.8 Debt Compliance	8
2.9 Capital Improvement Program	
2.10 Depository and Investment Policy	9
2.11 Surplus Property	
Section 3 – Internal Controls	10
3.1 Organization Review and Approval of Finances	10
3.2 Financial	10
3.3 Reconciliation	11
3.4 Authorized Signatories	11
3.5 Processes and Procedures	
3.6 Financial Signer Authority	
Section 4 – Tax Compliance	12
4.1 Tax Policies	12
4.2 Responsibility	12
4.3 Training	13
4.4 Expenditure of Bond Proceeds	13
4.5 Reimbursements	
4.6 Use of Bond-Financed Facilities; Limits on Private Business Use	
4.7 Arbitrage and Rebate	15
4.8 Availability of VCAP As Remedial Action	
4.9 Records to be Maintained	
4.10 Certain Qualifications	16
Section 5 – Accounting	16
5.1 Accounting Methodology	
5.2 Electronic Accounts Payable and Receivables	
5.3 Capital Assets and Depreciation	17
5.4 Insurance and Damage Reimbursements	18
5.5 Consumables, Inventory, and Chemical Accounting System	18
Revision History	20

DEFINITIONS, CONSTRUCTION, ACRONYMS, AND FORMAT

This Section of the *OJRSA Financial and Accounting Policy* contains definitions, acronyms, abbreviations, and formatting that are specific to this document. In addition, additional terms using initial capitals shall have meanings ascribed thereto in the body of this Policy.

DEFINITIONS

The following words, unless the context, custom or intent clearly indicates otherwise, shall mean:

Accounting Period means the OJRSA's Fiscal Year.

<u>Annual Budget</u> means a financial plan containing projected expenditures and resources covering a single Fiscal Year (July 1–June 30).

<u>Authorized Signer</u> shall mean the Board Chair (or acting Board Chair) and the Executive Director, acting individually or together, as applicable.

<u>Bond Counsel</u> means, with respect to a particular issue of Bonds (as such term is defined in Section 4.1 hereof), either the law firm that served as bond counsel in connection with the issuance of such Bonds, or any other nationally recognized firm of attorneys experienced in the field of municipal bonds whose opinions as to federal income tax matters are generally accepted by purchasers of municipal bonds.

<u>Capital Improvement Fund</u> means the Projects & Contingency Fund, as well as other funds or accounts that may be created in accordance with Section 2.4.

<u>Capital Projects</u> means, in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, construction, renovation, or replacement projects for an existing facility or facilities of the OJRSA sewer utility system which extend the life of the system, or the purchase of an asset or equipment, to include software, with a useful life exceeding a year.

<u>Cash Basis of Accounting</u> means the method of accounting utilized by OJRSA, pursuant to which revenues and expenditures are recorded when actual payments are received or disbursed.

<u>Code</u> means the Code Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.

<u>Consumable</u> means items not included in the definition of Inventory and are not replaced or are finished in a process, such as janitorial items, toilet paper, batteries, light bulbs, and gloves. Consumables are usually discarded when they have failed. <u>Consumables do not include fuels</u>, oils, or lubricants purchased or stored in any size vessel.

<u>Contract</u> means any type of binding agreement, regardless of the title.

<u>Days Operating Cash on Hand</u> shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 2.10(H) herein.

<u>Debt Service</u> means for the period in question, the total cash required to pay back debt obligations calculated by totaling the periodic interest and principal payments coming due on a debt.

<u>Debt Service Coverage Ratio</u> means for any period of time, the ratio determined by dividing income available for Debt Service by the Debt Service for the given period.

<u>De Minimis</u> means something that is trifling or of little importance.

<u>Employee</u> has the meaning given such term in the then current version of the *OJRSA Employee Handbook*.

<u>Executive Director</u> means the Executive Director of OJRSA who serves as the chief administrative officer of the OJRSA.

, 2025

<u>Extraordinary Event</u> means an unprecedented event due to circumstances that are not under the control of management, is unusual in nature, and is infrequent in occurrence, such as a vehicle wreck, natural disaster, third-party damage, pandemic, federal government mandates, or other Act of God.

<u>F&A Committee</u> shall mean the OJRSA's Finance & Administration Committee.

Financial Signer shall mean the OJRSA's Office Manager.

<u>Fiscal Year</u> means the period of twelve calendar months, beginning on July 1 of each year and ending on June 30 of the following year, unless the same shall have been changed by OJRSA pursuant to the authorization contained in Section 2.1 hereof.

<u>Full Accrual Basis of Accounting</u> means a financial accounting method that allows an entity to record revenue before receiving payment for goods or services sold, and record expenses as they are incurred.

<u>Generally Accepted Accounting Principles or GAAP</u> means the collection of commonly-followed accounting rules and standards for financial reporting and measuring financial performance.

<u>Insurance and Damage Reimbursement</u> means the receipt of cash from an insurance company, governmental agency (such as FEMA), or other such organization that covers losses incurred as a result of an Extraordinary Event. Reimbursement could cover equipment, material, labor, infrastructure replacement, and other such expenses incurred by the agency.

<u>Inventory</u> means items used to replace a lost or damaged part of a machine, such as pulleys, couplings, and rotors used for pump components that are not capital assets as identified in Section 5.3. There are three (3) classifications of Inventory:

- 1. Vital: An item within critical equipment that, should it fail, will badly reduce or stop production or will harm OJRSA, a Person, or the community. These are typically items that have a long lead time to receive when ordered. Examples include spare pumps, motors, repair clamps, air release valves, and generators that are dedicated to specific applications.
- 2. Essential: An item that could cause a significant loss of production but will not endanger the safety of people or the environment. Examples include pump repair parts and common-size operating valves.
- 3. Desirable: An item that would not cause any problems if not on hand in the moment and are typically stocked by or can easily be fabricated by vendors. Examples include bearings, gauges, and belts.

IRS Code means United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

<u>Joint Authority Act</u> means in the South Carolina Joint Authority Water and Sewer Systems Act, which is codified at Title 6, Chapter 25 of the Code.

<u>Lab Chemicals</u> means items not included in the definition of Inventory and are solid, liquid, or gaseous chemicals and associated labware used for compliance monitoring or process control in the OJRSA laboratory, such as pH solution, acids, sodium hydroxide, and *E. coli* bottles.

<u>Limited Signer</u> shall mean the F&A Committee Chair and Operation and Planning Committee Chair. These individuals shall possess all authority described in Section 3.4 herein.

Member Cities means the municipalities of Seneca, Walhalla, Westminster.

<u>Person</u> means any corporate organization (including, without limitation, corporations, limited partnerships, and limited liability companies), business, individual, union, committee, club, other organization, or group of individuals.

Personal Property means any property besides land that is owned by OJRSA.

, 2025

<u>Policy</u> means these financial policies of OJRSA, as approved by the Board and as amended from time to time.

<u>Process Chemicals</u> means items not included in the definition of Inventory and are liquid or gaseous chemicals used solely for the purpose of treating wastewater and biosolids that is purchased in individual bulk quantities greater than fifty (50) gallons or one hundred (100) pounds, such as chlorine gas, sodium hypochlorite, sodium bisulfite, peracetic acid, and liquid polymer. Process Chemicals do not include chemicals purchased in bags (such as lime or dry polymer) or fuels, oils, or lubricants purchased or stored in any size vessel.

<u>Real Property</u> means any land, all things attached thereto, and all improvements made thereto including buildings and structures located thereon.

Regulations means United States Department of the Treasury Regulations unless otherwise stated.

Responsible Official means the Executive Director, or such other responsible official designated by the OJRSA Board who is responsible for OJRSA's compliance with the policies and procedures set forth in Section 4 of this Policy and any Tax Certificate to be entered into by OJRSA. The Responsible Official may from time to time delegate certain of the responsibilities to be performed by other members of the staff of OJRSA, acting under the general supervision and direction of the Responsible Official.

Retail Impact Fund means the fund operated pursuant to Section 3.03, which is funded by impact fees collected and expended pursuant to Title 6 Chapter 1 Article 9 (DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES) of the South Carolina Code of Laws 1976, as amended and OJRSA Impact Fee Policy.

<u>Retail</u> means, in reference to OJRSA's wastewater treatment and/or conveyance system, the portion of the wastewater collection system, trunk sewer, and/or treatment plant where OJRSA is the sole wastewater utility providing services to the end user.

<u>Sinking Fund</u> means a fund established by OJRSA for the purpose of accumulating revenue over a period of time to fund a future Capital Project, or repayment of long-term debt.

<u>Surplus Property</u> means OJRSA-owned real or personal property with remaining useful life that has no reasonable expectation of future use within the purposes of OJRSA.

<u>Tax Agreement</u> means the agreement entered into by OJRSA with respect to each Bond or series of Bonds setting forth obligations intended to maximize the likelihood that all applicable post-issuance requirements of IRS Code to preserve the tax-exempt or tax-advantaged status of such Bonds.

Wholesale Impact Fund means the fund operated pursuant to Section 3.03, which is funded by impact fees collected and expended pursuant to Title 6, Chapter, 1 Article 9 (DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES) of the Code and OJRSA Impact Fee Policy.

Wholesale means, in reference to OJRSA's wastewater treatment and/or conveyance system, the portion of OJRSA wastewater trunk sewer and/or treatment system that serves the Member Cities, as well as the Town of West Union.

CONSTRUCTION

In this Policy, unless the context otherwise requires:

- A. Articles and Sections referred to by number shall mean the corresponding Articles and Sections of this Policy.
- B. The terms "hereby," "hereof," "hereto," "herein," "hereunder," and any similar terms refer to this Policy, and the term "hereafter" shall mean after, and the term "heretofore" shall mean before the date of adoption of this Policy.
- C. Words of the masculine gender shall mean and include correlative words of the female and neuter genders, and words importing the singular number shall mean and include the plural number and vice versa.
- D. Shall is mandatory and requires compliance. May is permissive.

, 2025

ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

ACH: Automated Clearing House

Board: Board of Commissioners of Oconee Joint Regional Sewer Authority

ACFR: Annual Comprehensive Financial Report EMMA: Electronic Municipal Market Access FEMA: Federal Emergency Management Agency FDIC: Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FINRA: Financial Industry Regulatory Authority GAAP: Generally Accepted Accounting Principles GASB: Government Accounting Standards Board GFOA: Government Finance Officers Association IRS: United States Internal Revenue Service

LGIP: South Carolina Local Government Investment Pool

OJRSA: Oconee Joint Regional Sewer Authority

VCAP: Internal Revenue Service's Voluntary Closing Agreement Program

SCDAH: South Carolina Department of Archives and History or any successor agency

WOMSS: Work Order Maintenance Software System

DOCUMENT FORMAT

This policy contains fonts and styles that mean certain things, including points of emphasis or reference other sections or materials. Below is a list of the types used within this manual and what it represents when encountered in the OJRSA Financial and Accounting Policy.

BOLD CAPITAL LETTERS Important point of emphasis

Dashed Underline Name of a form to use for documenting a task referenced in the document

Italic 'Cambria Math' Font Mathematic or chemistry formula

Italics Title of books, manuals, and other documents

MIX-SIZED CAPITAL LETTERS Name of sections or appendices in a book, manual, or other document

<u>Underlined Italics</u> A note of caution or warning

SECTION 1 – PURPOSE AND ADOPTION

Oconee Joint Regional Sewer Authority ("OJRSA") has developed and adopted a comprehensive set of financial policies that are consistent with the Board of Commissioners of Oconee Joint Regional Sewer Authority's (the "Board"), as the governing body of OJRSA, goals and objectives. This *OJRSA Financial and Accounting Policy* (this "Policy") is an integral part of the development of service, providing of capital, and establishing of financial plans and the Annual Budget. This Policy provides the basis for decision-making and ensure the OJRSA's ongoing financial stability.

The Policy shall become effective in accordance with OJRSA Resolution 2025-XX. All resolutions or policies (including former financial policies) that are in conflict with the provisions of the approval resolution or the Policy adopted thereby (as amended) are hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict or inconsistency or in their entirety where the conflict or inconsistency is not severable from such document.

SECTION 2 – FINANCIAL MATTERS

2.1 FISCAL YEAR

OJRSA shall be operated on a Fiscal Year basis, which shall commence on the first (1st) day of July of each year and shall end on the thirtieth (30th) day of June of the following year. OJRSA may, by resolution duly adopted by the Board, change the Fiscal Year at any time from that now existing to a different twelve (12) month period.

, 2025

2.2 UNRESTRICTED FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS

OJRSA maintains two unrestricted (2) accounts or funds, which are collectively referred to within this Policy as the "Unrestricted Fund." These accounts are utilized to fund the general operation and maintenance of the Wholesale and Retail systems.

The Unrestricted Fund is used to receive revenue and pay expenses associated with the Annual Budget, which may include capital expenditures as approved by the Board. The Unrestricted Fund is comprised of the following two funds:

- A. <u>Wholesale Operations & Maintenance Fund</u>. The banking and investment account used to pay for normal operating business expenses associated with the Wholesale wastewater conveyance and treatment system.
- B. <u>Retail Operations & Maintenance Fund</u>. The banking and investment account used to pay for normal operating business expenses associated with the Retail wastewater conveyance and treatment system. All revenues collected from the Retail system must remain in this fund and cannot intermingle with other OJRSA funds except as necessary for operating shared assets, such as the Coneross Creek Water Reclamation Facility, which is OJRSA's wastewater treatment plant.

2.3 RESTRICTED FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS

OJRSA maintains three (3) restricted bank accounts, each with a specific purpose as detailed below, where the funds can only be used for those purposes which they were collected and/or designated by the Board. Within this Policy, these funds may be collectively referred to as "Restricted Funds."

Expenditures from these funds are strictly limited to the mandates of each fund and can only be made upon Board approval. Restricted Fund revenues or fund balance are not to be used to subsidize other funds, except as required or permitted by this Policy.

- A. <u>Wholesale Impact Fund</u>. The banking and investment account to be used for the renovation, modernization, and expansion of Wholesale system. Such fund shall be managed in a manner consistent with Section 2.6(F) of this Policy.
- B. <u>Retail Impact Fund</u>. Banking and investment account to be used for the renovation, modernization, and expansion of OJRSA retail system including the:
 - 1. Coneross Creek Water Reclamation Facility,
 - 2. Construction of new treatment facilities, and
 - 3. Conveyance system.
- C. Capital Projects Fund. This fund is used as a reserve fund for:
 - Capital Projects,
 - 2. Unexpected expenses or emergency repairs that were not included in the Wholesale Operations and Maintenance Fund and Retail Operations and Maintenance Fund for a Fiscal Year,
 - 3. The restoring or replacing of depreciated or obsolete properties of the system, and
 - 4. Other purposes as recognized by the Board.

2.4 Creating and Closing Additional Accounts

The OJRSA may create and close additional special fund accounts as necessary, such as when funding a special project. The Board shall determine if such accounts are Unrestricted Funds or Restricted Funds.

2.5 ANNUAL BUDGET

- A. The Annual Budget is the vehicle through which the Board authorizes OJRSA to fund operations during a Fiscal Year for specific purposes and which establishes the economic resources that are required to support these activities. The Annual Budget, which is required by South Carolina law, is a fiscal, planning, and policy document, reflecting the allocation of limited revenues among diverse uses.
- B. Citizen input into decisions relating to revenues will be solicited during the budget public hearing process and will be made available for public review prior to consideration by the Board. Best efforts shall be made for the proposed Annual Budget is to be presented to the Board for its consideration no later than the first scheduled Board meeting in May. The Annual Budget shall be approved by the Board by no later than June 30 of each

, 2025

year. Notice of the adoption of the Annual Budget will be provided in accordance with the provisions of South Carolina law.

- C. Budgets shall be prepared using the Cash Basis of Accounting at the department level and provide the basis for the OJRSA's financial management system. The adopted Annual Budget shall constitute the maximum expenditure authorization for a given fund and can be amended only by action of the Board.
- D. In drafting the Annual Budget and identifying multi-year costs, the expenditures shall be prioritized in accordance with the following:
 - 1. Maintenance or installation of devices, equipment, and systems that ensure a safe working environment for Employees and the public;
 - 2. Maintenance or installation of infrastructure or appurtenances to remain in compliance with applicable permits, laws, and regulations; and
 - 3. Installation of equipment and/or programs that reduce operating costs, such as increased utilization of technology, equipment, and proven business methods.
- E. The Executive Director will monitor the financial condition of OJRSA and estimate present and future financial needs. It will be the duty of the Executive Director to take action to bring the budget into balance if adjustments are needed in the course of a Fiscal Year. The Executive Director will provide monthly summary reports and detailed quarterly reports to the Board covering the operating results of OJRSA compared to the budget and prior year performance. All excess revenue collected by OJRSA that exceeds the projected budget revenue figure from a specific revenue category must be reported to the Board on a monthly basis.
- F. Department heads will be accountable for the implementation of department budgets in a manner that accomplishes the programs and objectives for which the budgets were authorized and ensuring that their respective budgets stay within the prescribed funding levels.
- G. Departments must adhere to the Annual Budget by each major expense category of personnel, operating, and capital. Budget transfers or shifts in departmental budgets must be authorized by the Executive Director, provided that overall budget appropriations do not change without the approval of the Board.
- H. OJRSA will operate on a current funding basis which means expenditures shall be budgeted and controlled so as not to exceed current revenues plus the planned use of fund balances accumulated through prior years.
- I. Operating revenues shall be equal or greater than operating expenses. Revenues will be estimated based on actual revenues during the last twelve (12) months in conjunction with rate adjustments, cost-of-service projections, and any projected customer growth-approved by the OJRSA Board on an annual basis. All other revenues will be based on actual revenues during the last twelve (12) months (adjusted for any Extraordinary Events).
- J. Expenses will generally be based on actual expenses during the last twelve (12) month period, and as necessary a cost-of-living factor (adjusted for any Extraordinary Events). Labor expenses will primarily be based on the current level of Employees, a cost-of-living adjustment as necessary, and any anticipated merit-based salary adjustments determined by the Executive Director and approved by the Board. All other expenses will be based on last twelve (12) months (adjusted for any Extraordinary Events).
- K. All operations are expected to be self-supporting. OJRSA will conduct an annual review of fee structures, charges for services, and other operating revenues and expenditures.
- L. Multi-year operating cost projections shall be prepared and updated each year to identify the impact of current decision making on future resources.
- M. For purposes of this Policy, the Cash Basis of Accounting is used in defining revenues and expenditures.
- N. OJRSA will make every effort to maximize any discounts offered by creditors/vendors.

2.6 REVENUES

- A. OJRSA will maximize and diversify its revenue base to raise sufficient revenue to support essential agency services and to maintain services. OJRSA must be sensitive to the balance between the need for services and the Member Cities' ability to raise fees to support those services.
- B. OJRSA shall conservatively estimate annual revenue increases.
- C. All surpluses above the budgeted revenue estimates will be available to OJRSA for appropriation through the agency's budget monitoring and approval processes. Additional appropriations will be used for activities that support the function or program generating the additional fees.

, 2025

- D. Revenue shortfalls requiring the utilization of Restricted Fund resources will result in a current appropriation level reduction. In the event of a current Fiscal Year projected total revenue shortfall, OJRSA will document other offsetting revenues or reduce its Annual Budget within the regular budget monitoring process. TRANSFERS FROM THE RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE TO COVER REVENUE SHORTFALLS IN THE RESTRICTED FUNDS SHALL NOT OCCUR WITHOUT BOARD AUTHORIZATION.
- E. Whenever possible, OJRSA will maintain a diversified and stable revenue base to reduce the effects of short-term fluctuations in any one revenue source.
- F. The Wholesale Operations and Maintenance Fund and the Retail Operations and Maintenance Fund shall be self-supporting. The Board will establish all user fees at a level related to the full costs (operating, direct, indirect, and capital) of providing the service. The Board will review these fees and charges annually in the Annual Budget process and target rates that meet the cost to provide the service.
- G. Charges for services that benefit specific users should recover full costs, including all direct costs, overhead, loss of earned interest, and depreciation on capital assets. When applicable for determining OJRSA costs, current Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Rate Schedules may be used, as well as the cost to rent comparable equipment needed to complete a function.
- H. Restricted Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than Debt Service or capital projects.
- I. One-time resources such as proceeds from asset sales, debt refinancing, one-time grants, revenue spikes, budget savings, and similar non-recurring revenue shall not be used for current or new ongoing operating expenses without the approval of the Board. Appropriate uses of one-time resources include:
 - 1. Rebuilding Unrestricted Fund reserves (fund balance);
 - 2. Establishing or rebuilding the Capital Projects Fund;
 - 3. Early retirement of debt; and
 - 4. Funding capital expenditures and/or other non-recurring expenditures.
- J. OJRSA will actively seek grant funding to benefit both operating and capital expenditures. Prior to the acceptance of grant funding, an evaluation of the grant must determine the following:
 - 1. The grant purpose is compatible with OJRSA program objectives;
 - 2. The benefits provided by the grant exceed the cost of administration;
 - 3. The grant does not commit OJRSA to long-term, unaccounted for expenditures after the completion of the grant period; and
 - 4. The cost and funding source to determine whether to continue the service when the grant period ends. The decision to continue to fund or drop the grant will be made prior to accepting the grant. Alternatively, OJRSA could choose to continue the service with other funding.

2.7 EXPENDITURES

- A. Expenses will generally be based on actual expenses during the last twelve (12) month period, and as necessary a cost-of-living factor (adjusted for any Extraordinary Events). Labor expenses will primarily be based on the current level of Employees with a cost-of-living increase and an improvement factor based on performance goals to be based annually. All other expenses will be based on last twelve (12) months (adjusted for any Extraordinary Events). An appropriate balance will be maintained between budget dollars provided for direct public services and dollars provided to assure good management and legal compliance. In addition to the Executive Director and the Board Secretary/Treasurer, all department heads share in the responsibility of understanding the agency's long-term financial viability, its general spending trends, its projected incomes, and educating themselves, and Employees on the necessary short and long-term balance between revenues and expenditures.
- B. All operations are expected to be self-supporting entities. OJRSA will conduct an annual review of fee structures, charges for services, and other operating revenues and expenditures.
- C. The annual expenditures (operating budget minus capital outlay) shall not exceed the annual revenues.
- D. In extraordinary circumstances, the Board may approve the use of fund balance in lieu of rate increases, to cover non-recurring or capital costs.
- E. Before OJRSA undertakes any Contracts that would create fixed ongoing expenses, the cost implications of

, 2025

such Contracts will be estimated for current and future years with the aid of strategic financial planning models, when possible.

2.8 DEBT COMPLIANCE

- A. Adherence to this Policy will help assure access to the credit and capital markets and maintenance of the highest possible credit rating given the rating environment.
- B. Debt or bond financing shall not be used to finance operating expenditures.
- C. All bonds, notes, Contracts, accounts payable, and other monetary liabilities will be paid when due and shall have the most superior lien position during the allocation of resources in budget planning, as set forth in OJRSA's bond documents.
- D. Capital Projects, financed through the issuance of bonds or other means, shall be financed for a period not to exceed the expected useful life of the financed property.
- E. OJRSA will consider the use of lease-purchase financing for capital outlay of equipment and heavy vehicles having a useful life of at least three (3) years or more.²
- F. OJRSA shall maintain and collect rates and charges so that the income therefrom is reasonably expected to yield annual net earnings equal to at least the sum of one hundred twenty percent (120%) of the annual Debt Service requirements for all parity bonds outstanding. To assure that this requirement and the overall financial goals and objectives of OJRSA are met, the desired minimum targeted Debt Service Coverage Ratio for any given Fiscal Year shall exceed one hundred twenty percent (120%).
- G. OJRSA will establish an appropriate mix of bonded debt and pay-as-you-go financing in the funding of its Capital Projects.
- H. OJRSA seeks to minimize the protection from optional redemption given to bondholders, consistent with its desire to obtain the lowest possible interest rates on its debt. OJRSA bonds shall generally be subject to optional redemption. OJRSA seeks early calls at low or no premiums because such features have allowed it in the past to refinance debt more easily for Debt Service savings when interest rates dropped. OJRSA will annually evaluate optional redemption provisions for each issue to assure that OJRSA does not pay unacceptably higher interest rates to obtain such advantageous calls.
- I. OJRSA acknowledges its responsibility to meet its continuing disclosure obligations on a timely basis. The Executive Director and shall be authorized to provide any continuing disclosure materials on the OJRSA's behalf to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board's EMMA system or any other information repository; continuing disclosure materials include, but are not limited to, audits, annual financial reporting, event notices, voluntary events and third-party information. To the extent OJRSA is not in compliance with its continuing disclosure requirements, it will immediately undertake actions to become compliant.
- J. OJRSA may employ outside financial specialists to assist it in developing a bond issuance strategy, preparing bond documents and marketing bonds to investors. The key players in the OJRSA's financing transactions include Bond Counsel, financial advisor, underwriter(s) and OJRSA representatives (the Executive Director and other OJRSA representatives as may be appointed by the Executive Director). Other outside firms, such as those providing paying agent/registrar, trustee, credit enhancement, auditing, or printing services, are retained as required. The financing team will meet periodically or when necessary to review the overall financing strategy of the OJRSA and make recommendations to the Executive Director.
- K. Lease purchase financings may be considered before the use of Capital Improvement Fund (as described in Section 2.9 below) balance for capital equipment and fleet in conformance with governance documents.³
- L. As applicable, OJRSA may enter into Contracts with terms exceeding one (1) year so long as the Contract is subject to appropriation of available funds by OJRSA during its annual budget process.

2.9 Capital Improvement Program

A. OJRSA desires to create a ten (10) year financial forecast that will include projections for annual growth plus allowances for operating costs of new capital facilities. The forecast should be updated annually as part of the

² Leases are subject to requirements established the Joint Authority Act. OJRSA to consult with legal counsel prior to entering into any lease agreement as it may be considered as a debt that must be approved by the councils of the Member Cities.

³ Leases are subject to requirements established in the Joint Authority Act. OJRSA to consult with legal counsel prior to entering into any lease agreement as it may be considered as a debt that must be approved by the councils of the Member Cities.

, 2025

Annual Budget process. The forecast will provide the financial health of all major funds and assess the financial implications of current and proposed policies, programs, and assumptions. The forecast will include potential alternatives to improving the long-term financial health of the agency.

- B. The Board will establish a Capital Improvement Fund (a.k.a. the "Projects & Contingency Fund," as well as others that may be created in accordance with Section 2.4) and designate said funds for the implementation of Capital Projects. OJRSA will prepare and adopt a ten (10) year Capital Improvement Plan, which shall be reviewed annually with the Annual Budget and revised, as necessary, that will detail each Capital Project, the estimated cost, and funding source.
- C. Operating expenditures will be programmed to include the cost of implementing the Capital Improvement Plan as required.
- D. Capital Projects shall be completed and purchased on a regular schedule.
- E. Pursuant to South Carolina law and OJRSA's bond documents, and within the constraints of operating budgets, debt, including bonds and leases in compliance with Section 2.8 above, may be issued for the purchase of Capital Projects, including major renovations.
- F. An amount determined annually by the Board may be deposited into the Capital Improvement Fund from the Annual Budget.
- G. Facilities whose construction or acquisition results in new or substantially increased operating costs will be considered only after an assessment indicates a clear need for the project and resources for funding the increased operating costs are available.
- H. All proposals for the expenditure of capital funds will be formulated and presented to the Board within the framework of a general capital budget. Except in circumstances of any emergency nature, no consideration is given to the commitment of any capital funds in without a prior general review of all capital budget requirements.

2.10 Depository and Investment Policy

- A. This Policy mandates pursuit of the following overall goals and objectives: all aspects of cash management operations shall be designed to ensure the absolute safety and integrity of OJRSA's financial assets; and the overall financial objective is to provide the highest possible income support to the OJRSA and present a very low risk of loss of principal. OJRSA's banking and investment policy is in conformance with all federal, state, and local governing legislation, the GFOA best practices and other legal requirements and applies to the depositing and investment of all funds, excluding the investment of Employees' retirement funds.
- B. When allowed, OJRSA will consolidate cash and reserve balances from all funds to maximize investment earnings and to increase efficiencies with regard to investment pricing, safekeeping, and administration.
- C. The Board may elect to participate in the LGIP to acquire maximum returns on investments by pooling available funds with funds from other political subdivisions through the South Carolina Treasurer's Office as permitted by the Code. INVESTMENTS SOURCED OUTSIDE OF LGIP SHALL BE PROPERLY COLLATERALIZED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SOUTH CAROLINA LAW WITH DOMESTICALLY OWED SECURITIES.
- D. Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. The objective will be to mitigate credit risk and interest rate risk.
- E. All investments shall be consistent with this Policy and consistent with GFOA policies and statements.
- F. The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating and accounts payable requirements that may be reasonably anticipated.
- G. At all times, OJRSA shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet cash flow requirements by matching investment maturities with forecasted cash flow requirements, investing in securities with active secondary markets, and maintaining appropriate portfolio diversification. Reserves and funds not required for the maintenance of a positive cash flow position within the next six (6) months (time deposits held in savings accounts or as certificates of deposits) will be maintained in accounts bearing the highest interest rates available to OJRSA, taking into account potential interest rate and credit risk, provided that such accounts are secured from risk as provided by law. Where practicable, such accounts will be structured to ensure availability of funds without incurring unnecessary penalties upon withdrawal. Where practicable, accounts should be structured to maximize FDIC coverage, and where FDIC coverage is not available, such excess funds shall be appropriately collateralized.

, 2025

- H. The minimum balances have been established as follows:
 - 1. Wholesale Operations and Maintenance Fund: One hundred twenty (120) days cash on hand;
 - 2. Retail Operations and Maintenance Fund: One hundred twenty (120) Days Operating Cash On Hand.
 - 3. "Days Operating Cash on Hand" shall be determined under the following formula:

 $= \frac{Cash \ and \ Cash \ Equivalents + Nonrestricted \ Investments}{((Annual \ Operating \ Expense - Depreciation) \div 365 \ Days)}$

- I. To the extent FDIC insurance is not available, collateralization will be required on all demand deposit accounts, including checking accounts and non-negotiable certificates of deposit.
- J. The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the investment risk constraints and liquidity needs.
- K. Officers and Employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with the proper execution and management of the investment program, or that could impair their ability to make impartial decisions.
- L. The Executive Director or his/her designee is authorized to manage the investment portfolio.
- M. A list will be maintained by the Office Manager and Board Secretary/Treasurer of all financial institutions and depositories authorized to provide investment services for OJRSA.
- N. All financial institutions and broker/dealers who desire to become qualified for investment transactions must supply the following as appropriate:
 - 1. Proof of Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) certification (not applicable to certificate of deposit counterparties).
 - 2. Proof of state registration.
 - 3. Certification of having read and understood and agreeing to comply with Section 2.10 herein.
 - 4. Evidence of adequate insurance coverage.

2.11 SURPLUS PROPERTY

- A. Surplus Property, which have little or no salvage value, considering the cost of disposing of same, such as older model computers and printers, may be offered to employees at nominal prices, as established by the department head upon the approval of the Executive Director, before other means of disposition are considered.
- B. Surplus Property with salvage value, but which are likely to bring little at a conventional auction, may be sold through an internet site such as www.govdeals.com or any other reputable internet site or auction service which the Executive Director or designated department head has determined will offer the most exposure to potential interested buyers, or which will likely result in the highest return for OJRSA.
- C. Surplus Property with trade-in value may also be traded-in to a dealer or vendor in exchange for, or toward the purchase of, items needed by a Department of OJRSA.
- D. Surplus Property may also be sold to, traded with or donated to other governmental entities, if such arrangement is determined by the Executive Director to be in the best interests of OJRSA.

SECTION 3 – INTERNAL CONTROLS

3.1 ORGANIZATION REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF FINANCES

- A. The F&A Committee is tasked with reviewing and approving monthly and year-to-date financial reports. If the F&A Committee fails to meet to review, discuss, and approve reports, this function shall be performed by the full Board.
- B. Discussions regarding financial matters should be documented in the appropriate meeting's minutes.

3.2 FINANCIAL

- A. Comparisons of budgeted and actual revenues and expenditures are made in monthly and year-to-date financial reports.
- B. When practical, compare results with actual year-to-date results from the same period in the prior year.
- C. Checks and payments made should have accompanying documentation when reviewed and signed.
- D. Invoices should be approved and signed off on (or initialed) before payment in accordance with the OJRSA

Procurement Policy.

- E. Only original invoices should be paid to avoid duplication of payment.
- F. Have fidelity bond coverage to protect against losses caused by acts of fraud or dishonesty.

3.3 RECONCILIATION

- A. OJRSA shall utilize an independent firm knowledgeable in accounting to conduct monthly reconciliations of all OJRSA accounts.
- B. All reconciliations should be reviewed by the Executive Director.
- C. Reconciliation reports shall be presented by the Board Secretary/Treasurer to the F&A Committee or Board at a scheduled monthly meeting as stated in Section 3.1 above.

3.4 AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES

Signatory authority and powers shall be limited to the individuals included in **Error! Not a valid bookmark self-reference.** below:

Table 1: Authorized signers for financial transactions and documents

Authority	Authorized Signers	Limited Signers	Financial Signer
Sign checks ⁴	Yes	Yes	No
Initiate stop payment orders ⁵	Yes	Yes	Yes
Make deposits at a bank branch	Yes	Yes	Yes
Withdraw cash and obtain cashier's checks ⁶	Yes	No	No
Perform bank branch and online transactions, including payments and wires	Yes	No	Yes
Perform bank account maintenance	Yes	No	Yes
Open and close bank accounts, and sign deposits and other legal financial documents	Yes	No	No
Other banking responsibilities not defined within this Table ⁷	Yes	No	Yes
Execute contracts and binding documents	Yes	No	No
Requisition and Purchase Order	As stated in OJRSA Procurement and		
authorization	Disposal of Property Policy		
Purchase vehicles or equipment	As stated in OJRSA Procurement and		
	Disposal of Property Policy		

3.5 Processes and Procedures

- A. OJRSA should use prenumbered documents for easier tracking, such as purchase orders, invoices, and checks.
- B. Policies should be communicated throughout the staff and Board. Training should be conducted for all staff upon hiring and as policies change.
- C. OJRSA will establish and maintain accounting systems according to the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and standards of the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
- D. An annual audit will be performed and completed no longer than six (6) months from the end of the prior Fiscal Year by an independent public accounting firm selected by the Board that will issue an official opinion on the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) with a management letter detailing areas that need improvement, if required.
- E. Full disclosure will be provided in the financial statements and bond representations.

⁴ Requires two signatures.

⁵ Requires two signatures.

⁶ Requires two signatures.

⁷ Until defined as policy by the Board.

, 2025

- F. A management letter, the byproduct of an annual audit, shall be presented by the independent certified public accounting firm no later than sixty (60) days from issuance of OJRSA's ACFR.
- G. Financial systems will be maintained to monitor expenditures and revenues on a monthly basis with a thorough analysis and adjustment quarterly, if required.
- H. All revenue collections are the responsibility of the Executive Director or his/her designee.
- I. OJRSA will maintain an internal control system that safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurances (e.g., noting any changes in finance statements) for the proper recording of the financial transactions of OJRSA.

3.6 FINANCIAL SIGNER AUTHORITY

In addition to the signatory authority for the Financial Signer provided in Section 3.4 above, the Financial Signer shall have the authority to perform the following duties in regard to banking activities on a daily basis without prior or separate approval from an Authorized Signer or Limited Signer: (i) initiate stop payment orders; (ii) make deposits at a bank branch, including delegation of such function to records clerk, as needed or convenient; (iii) creating online payments, which are approved for payment online by the Authorized Signer; (iv) paying credit card bills online, includes transfer of funds. However, all such payments shall be approved via "OJRSA Electronic Payment Summary & Authorization" transmittal signed/approved by Authorized Signer; (v) selection, purchase, trade-In, and cancellation of legally authorized investments, as described and authorized herein, for all bank accounts; (vi) transfer of credit card payments to appropriate account due to software limitations of credit card service merchant; and (vii) segregation and distribution of fees to proper accounts when paid by a customer in a lump sum (e.g. payment of engineering, inspection, and connection fees with one (1) check. Payment is initially deposited into the permitting account (WIF), but requires segregation and further disbursement to Wholesale Operations & Maintenance Fund). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Financial Signer shall inform an Authorized Signer of any of the foregoing actions in writing (include electronic mail) within one (1) business day of any of the authorized banking activities described herein.

SECTION 4 – TAX COMPLIANCE

4.1 TAX POLICIES

SECTION 4 establishes the policies and procedures (the "Tax Policies") in connection with the issuance of tax-exempt and tax-advantaged obligations of OJRSA ("Bonds" or "Bond Issue") in order to maximize the likelihood that all applicable post-issuance requirements of federal income tax law needed to preserve the tax-exempt or tax-advantaged status of such Bonds are satisfied. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined are intended to have the meanings given to such terms in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "IRS Code") and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder (the "Regulations").

SECTION 4 is intended to supplement the specific representations and covenants of OJRSA set forth in the tax certificate, tax regulatory agreement, or similar tax document ("Tax Agreement") executed by OJRSA in connection with the issuance of a particular issue of Bonds. The individual(s) identified below as responsible for particular compliance duties shall have read, and shall periodically review, the applicable provisions of each Tax Agreement that relate to such duties, and shall consult with Bond Counsel to the extent that the tax law requirements set forth in a Tax Agreement, or their application to the facts, are not clear. (The Board, in connection with Bond Counsel, may supplement this Section 4 from time to time with Exhibits setting forth specific timing requirements and other summary checklists relating to the compliance requirements of particular Bond issues.)

4.2 RESPONSIBILITY

The Responsible Official shall provide a copy of these Tax Policies to OJRSA's auditors and shall instruct such auditors to report to the Responsible Official from time to time any matters the auditors believe relevant to the matters addressed herein.

_____, 2025

4.3 TRAINING

OJRSA shall provide appropriate training to the Responsible Official and any other individuals responsible for carrying out compliance duties under Section 4 sufficient to enable such individuals to perform those duties. Training may include conference calls or meetings with Bond Counsel to report on issues and questions that arise from time to time in connection with Section 4 and for Bond Counsel to report on developments affecting the IRS Code and Regulations and their enforcement that may be relevant to the development and implementation of Section 4.

4.4 EXPENDITURE OF BOND PROCEEDS

Until all of the proceeds of a Bond issue have been spent (other than any proceeds deposited in a reserve fund or debt service fund), the Responsible Official shall periodically prepare a written record of the expenditures to date of all proceeds of the Bonds (an "Interim Expenditure Report"), noting any material departures in either timing or use from the original expectations for such expenditures set forth in the applicable Tax Agreement, as well as whether or not any applicable spending targets for arbitrage rebate exceptions have been met. The Responsible Official shall prepare the first such Interim Expenditure Report within six (6) months of the issuance of the Bond issue and at least every six (6) months thereafter until the delivery of the Final Expenditure Report described further below. In preparing such Interim Expenditure Reports, the Responsible Official shall consult as appropriate with Bond Counsel (including, among other things, as to the appropriate level of detail to be used in describing expenditures).

The Responsible Official shall be responsible for determining when all the proceeds of any Bond issue have been spent (other than those held in a reserve fund or debt service fund) and shall take steps to close out with reasonable promptness all project and similar funds holding proceeds of Bonds. If any proceeds together with investment earnings thereon (together, "Remaining Proceeds") remain after paying all expected costs of the projects financed, the Responsible Official shall consult with Bond Counsel as to possible ways to apply such proceeds and their investment and use, with the goal of spending all Remaining Proceeds as promptly as is required by law. Within sixty (60) days of the final expenditure or other disposition of all Remaining Proceeds, the Responsible Official shall prepare a written report (the "Final Expenditure Report") on the expenditure of all proceeds of the Bonds (inclusive of investment earnings), including the use of such proceeds and the schedule of such expenditures, together with any allocations or elections made in connection therewith. Such report also shall address whether rebatable arbitrage must be calculated and paid and on what schedule.

If a particular facility or improvement is only partially financed with proceeds of Bonds, the Responsible Official shall indicate in the report the percentages of each such facility or improvement attributable to equity, the proceeds of Bonds or other sources, including any permitted allocations or reallocations (which, to be valid, must be made within eighteen (18) months following the date the facility or improvement is first "placed in service" and in no event any later than the date sixty (60) days after the fifth (5th) anniversary of the issue date of the Bond issue in question).

4.5 REIMBURSEMENTS

The Responsible Official shall ensure that any use of Bond proceeds to reimburse OJRSA for expenditures made by OJRSA before the issue date of the Bonds in question either satisfies the following timing requirements or is covered by one of the exceptions described below:

- A. <u>Date of Payment being Reimbursed</u>. The expenditure being reimbursed was made no earlier than sixty (60) days before OJRSA adopted a reimbursement resolution that generally described the project to which the expenditure relates and that stated the maximum expected principal amount of the anticipated Bond issue. If no reimbursement resolution was adopted, the expenditure was made no earlier than sixty (60) days before the adoption of the bond resolution authorizing the issuance of the Bond issue in question.
- B. <u>Date of Reimbursement</u>. The reimbursement is made no later than eighteen (18) months after the date the

, 2025

related project is "placed in service," and in any event no later than three (3) years after the date the expenditure that is being reimbursed was made.

- C. Exception for "Preliminary Expenditures." The preceding timing restrictions do not apply to the reimbursement of "preliminary expenditures," up to an amount that does not exceed twenty percent (20%) of the issue price of the Bond issue in question. "Preliminary expenditures" include architectural, engineering, surveying, soil testing, bond issuance costs, and similar "soft" costs incurred prior to the commencement of acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of a project, but do not include land acquisition, site preparation, and similar costs incident to the commencement of construction.
- D. <u>De Minimis Exception</u>. The timing restrictions described above do not apply to the reimbursement of other costs that do not exceed the lesser of five percent (5%) of the proceeds of the Bond issue or one hundred thousand dollars (\$100,000). (This exception is in addition to the exception for "preliminary expenditures.")

In addition, the Responsible Official shall ensure that moneys paid to OJRSA to reimburse prior expenditures are not used to create a Sinking Fund within a year of the reimbursement and shall consult with Bond Counsel as to any use of reimbursement payments to create any Sinking Fund.

4.6 Use of Bond-Financed Facilities; Limits on Private Business Use

OJRSA shall ensure that there is no threat to the tax-exempt or tax-advantaged status of any Bond issue resulting from impermissible "private business uses" of Bond-financed property. Such a threat could arise if more than ten percent (10%)⁹ of the property financed with the proceeds of a Bond issue is used in the trade or business of any person – including the federal government – that is not a state or local governmental entity. (Use by the general public does not constitute private business use.) "Use" for this purpose could result from the ownership or lease of Bond-financed property, from certain contracts to manage the property, from contracts to purchase the output of the property, or from arrangements that give a private party special legal entitlements with respect to the property (e.g., priority rights or other legal rights to control the use of the property).

The Responsible Official shall maintain accurate records of the property financed with the proceeds of each Bond issue, which records shall be updated at least once a year to reflect any conveyances or leases of any part of such property, as well as any management contracts with respect to the property, and any other arrangements involving any special legal rights with respect to the property (e.g., output contracts or naming rights). Such records shall determine at least once a year whether the aggregate level of private business use of the property financed with each outstanding Bond issue is within the applicable ten percent 10%) (or five percent (5%)) percent limitation, and whether there is a foreseeable risk that such limitation may be exceeded in the future. The Responsible Official shall consult with Bond Counsel as appropriate to determine whether particular arrangements (such as leases, output contracts, and management agreements) involve "private business use" (whenever possible, before entering into such arrangements), to consider steps that may be taken to limit potential private business use (such as modifications to the terms of management contracts and output contracts), and as to a determination of the overall level of private business use.

In the event any arrangement or disposition of property results in excessive private business use of Bond-financed property, OJRSA will, to the extent possible, take such remedial steps as may be permitted under Section 1.141-12 of the Regulations, including a redemption of a portion of the outstanding Bond issue, in order to maintain the intended tax treatment of the Bonds; and the Responsible Official will consult with Bond Counsel concerning such remedial actions.

⁸ An asset is "placed in service" when (1.) it has reached a degree of completion which would permit its operation at substantially its design level and (2.) the asset is, in fact, operating at such level.

⁹ This limitation is reduced to five percent (5%) if the private use is either "unrelated" or "disproportionate" to the governmental (including general public) use of the property in question, as those terms are defined in the Regulations. Private use is "disproportionate" only if it exceeds the governmental use of the property. Bond Counsel should be consulted as to whether a particular use would be treated as "unrelated" to the governmental use of the property.

_____, 2025

4.7 ARBITRAGE AND REBATE

OJRSA shall have covenanted in the Tax Agreement entered into with respect to each Bond issue (1) that proceeds of the Bond issue will be invested in accordance with the applicable arbitrage yield-restriction requirements under section 148(a) of the IRS Code and (2) that OJRSA will on a timely basis (a) determine the amount of any rebate liability accrued with respect to the Bond issue under section 148(f) of the IRS Code and (b) make the requisite payments (if any) of that rebate liability to the federal government.

- A. <u>Yield Restriction</u>. The Responsible Official shall monitor the investment of Bond proceeds to ensure that no proceeds that are subject to yield restriction are invested at a yield that is "materially higher" ¹⁰ than the yield on the Bond issue in question and shall maintain accurate records (including applicable bank and trust account statements) as to the investment of all Bond proceeds. The Bond proceeds, if any, that are subject to yield restriction will generally be identified as such in the applicable Tax Agreement.
- B. <u>Rebate</u>. Any rebate liability with respect to a Bond issue must be reported and paid (at least in part) no later than sixty (60) days following the fifth (5th) anniversary of the issue date of the Bond issue, every five (5) years thereafter while the Bond issue is outstanding, and within sixty (60) days following the final maturity of the Bond issue.

The Responsible Official shall determine at least annually whether the services of a rebate analyst ¹¹ ("Rebate Analyst") are required with respect to each outstanding Bond issue and, if such services are required, shall provide the Rebate Analyst with all investment and other records necessary for the Rebate Analyst to determine the amount of rebate that is payable or accrued with respect to a Bond issue. (In some cases, the relevant Bond documents may provide that periodic reports from a Rebate Analyst are mandatory.)

At least every six (6) months while there are any unspent Bond proceeds of an issue (other than proceeds in a reserve fund or debt service fund), the Responsible Official shall record the amount of such unspent proceeds as of the relevant target dates (generally, the date every six (6) months following the issue date of the Bond issue in question) in order to monitor whether any spend-down exception to the arbitrage rebate rules is available. (Such information may be incorporated in the Interim and Final Expenditures Reports described in Section 4.4 above.) With respect to each Bond issue, the applicable dates and required spend-down amounts will typically be set forth in the Tax Agreement for that Bond issue.

- C. Reserve Funds. Even if a Bond issue otherwise qualified for a spend-down exception to rebate, amounts held in a debt service reserve fund will generally remain subject to the arbitrage rebate requirements. With respect to any Bond issue that has a debt service reserve fund, the Responsible Official shall, at least once a year, make a determination and record (1.) the current balance held in any reserve fund, (2.) whether that balance exceeds the amount excluded from yield restriction under Section 1.148-2(f) of the Regulations, and (3.) the amount, if any, of arbitrage earnings on such fund as of each such date. The Responsible Official shall consult with Bond Counsel as to the proper disposition amounts held in a reserve fund in excess of the amount permitted under Section 1.148-2(f) of the Regulations described in the preceding sentence.
- D. <u>Other Transactions</u>. Because the following transactions may have arbitrage or rebate consequences (or, in some cases, may result in the "reissuance" of a Bond issue), the Responsible Official shall consult with Bond Counsel before:
 - 1. Investing any Bond proceeds in a guaranteed investment contract (with respect to which certain "3-bid" and other procedural requirements may apply);
 - 2. Pledging any funds as collateral security for the payment of debt service on the Bond issue;
 - 3. Entering into any swap or other hedging transaction with respect to the Bonds; or
 - 4. Modifying the interest rate on a Bond issue (other than the periodic modifications resulting automatically under a specified variable interest rate) or extending the timing of required principal payments

¹⁰ Generally, one-eighth of a percent (0.125%) above the Bond yield.

¹¹ The Rebate Analyst may be an accounting or law firm with experience calculating arbitrage rebate or a financial service firm that specializes in such calculations.

____, 2025

on a Bond issue.

4.8 AVAILABILITY OF VCAP AS REMEDIAL ACTION

In the event OJRSA's periodic reviews of the matters set forth in Section 4 indicate at any time that the use of Bond proceeds or of Bond-financed property has not complied with the applicable requirements of the IRS Code (e.g., with respect to arbitrage yield-restriction, arbitrage rebate payments, permitted expenditures of Bond proceeds, or limitations on the "private business use" of Bond-financed property, among other requirements outlined herein), OJRSA will consult with Bond Counsel as to whether use of the Internal Revenue Service's Voluntary Closing Agreement Program (VCAP), described in IRS Notice 2008-31 and Section 7.2.3 of the Internal Revenue Manual (and any subsequent guidance) may be an appropriate means of resolving the problem.

4.9 RECORDS TO BE MAINTAINED

OJRSA will maintain (either in paper or electronic form, or both) copies of all relevant records relating to each Bond issue until at least three (3) years after the latter of: (1) the final maturity of the Bond issue or (2) the final maturity of any tax-exempt obligations issued to refund the Bond issue.

Such records shall include the following for each Bond issue:

- A. The Bond transcript, including copies of the Tax Agreement and <u>8038-G</u> (or other) form filed with the IRS in connection with the Bond issue;
- B. Records of the investment and expenditure of Bond proceeds, including applicable bank and trust account statements, the Interim Expenditure Reports and Final Expenditure Report described above in Section 4.4 of these Tax Policies, and supporting records showing the purpose of particular expenditures (such as draw requests, purchase orders, invoices, and the like);
- C. Contracts and other records documenting any swaps, investment contracts, guarantees, and other financial transactions entered into with respect to the Bond issue;
- D. Copies of rebate calculations (or determinations that an exception to rebate was available), together with supporting workpapers, any reports of a Rebate Analyst, and copies of any and all filings (on form <u>8038-T</u> or otherwise) and payments to the IRS with respect to rebate;
- E. Copies of any correspondence with the IRS concerning the Bond issue (including but not limited to correspondence relating to an audit or other examination by the IRS of the Bond issue); and
- F. Copies of any and all leases, management contracts, output contracts, and other arrangements involving potential "private business use" of the Bond-financed property (the scope of which should be discussed with Bond Counsel).

4.10 CERTAIN QUALIFICATIONS.

OJRSA reserves the right to use its discretion as necessary and appropriate, in consultation with Bond Counsel, to amend or supplement Section 4 as situations warrant. Nothing herein shall authorize the Responsible Official or anyone else to consult with any lawyer unless such consultation is protected by the attorney-client privilege.

<u>SECTION 5 – ACCOUNTING</u>

5.1 ACCOUNTING METHODOLOGY

The method of accounting used by OJRSA on an annual basis is the Full Accrual Basis of Accounting.

5.2 ELECTRONIC ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND RECEIVABLES

- A. OJRSA shall pay all vendors that receive electronic payments either directly through the vendor's website, via ACH payments using the OJRSA banking institution's website, which offers fraud protection, or other electronic means as approved by the Executive Director.
- B. All electronic payments will be documented in a manner that shall include the following where applicable: vendor's name, purchase order, invoice number, summary of service or items purchased, purchase cost, and general ledger code chargeable against. This documentation will be signed by two individuals with either authorized or limited signatory power in accordance with SECTION 3.4.

- _____, 2025
- C. Purchase orders shall be required for all goods and non-contracted services received by OJRSA and shall comply with the OJRSA Procurement and Property Disposal Policy.
- D. Any vendor that does not accept electronic payments will continue to be paid via paper check through the using the current policies for payments.
- E. The OJRSA will provide all vendors that want to make electronic payments with the OJRSA's bank account information as necessary to complete the deposit.

5.3 Capital Assets and Depreciation

- A. OJRSA capital assets are stated at historical cost.
- B. The agency capitalizes purchases of assets greater than five thousand dollars (\$5,000).
- C. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.
- D. Depreciation of capital assets is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets as stated in Table 2.

Table 2: Types and descriptions of capital assets

Asset Types	Asset Categories	Asset Life (in years)	Examples
Buildings	General Structures	40	Offices, pump stations, workshops
· ·	Water Reclamation Facility	40	Structures, piping
	Other Substantial Aboveground	40	Covered storage, tanks, vaults, basins
	Structures or Enclosures	2.0	
Conveyance System	Inflow & Infiltration Repairs	20	Grout injection, manhole rehabilitation
	Inflow & Infiltration Replacement	40	Replacement of line segments, CIPP, manhole replacement
	Pipelines	40	Gravity sewer, force mains, manholes
	Sewer Appurtenances	40	Manholes, ARVs
	Tanks and Vaults	40	Wet wells, valve pits, reservoirs
Equipment	Control Systems and SCADA	10	Programming, meters, telemetry, specific electrical for system, control panels, PLCs
	Electrical Equipment	20	Motors, generators, motor control centers, lighting, conduit
	General Mechanical Equipment	20	HVAC
	Heavy Construction and Off-Road Equipment	10	Backhoes, excavators, utility tractors, forklifts
	Mechanical Equipment	20	Pumps, chains, fans, valves, etc.
	Sewer Inspection and Maintenance Equipment	7	CCTV, cleaning, and testing
Land and Easements	Land	Infinite	Real estate
	Easements and Rights-of-Way (intangible assets)	Infinite ¹²	
Services	Other General Consultation and Engineering Studies	5	Master planning
	Specific Project Consultation Services	20	
	and Engineering (if implemented or constructed)		
	Specific Project Consultation Services	5	
	and Engineering (if <u>not</u> implemented		
	or constructed)		
Vehicles	Light-Duty Off-Road Vehicles	7	UTVs, golf carts
	On-Road Commercial Vehicle	10	Dump truck, road tractor, pump truck

¹² Intangible assets consisting of rights-of-way and easements are recorded as capital assets at cost and considered to have an indefinite useful life; therefore, they are not amortized. If changes in factors and conditions result in the useful life of an intangible asset and it is no longer indefinite (e.g., abandon an easement), then the asset is evaluated for impairment because the change in the expected duration of use of the asset has occurred. The carrying value of the intangible asset, if any, following the recognition of any impairment loss, is amortized over the remaining estimated useful life of the asset.

, 2025

Asset Types	Asset Categories	Asset Life	Examples
		(in years)	
	On-Road Vehicles	7	Trucks, SUVs, cars
Other Assets	Furniture and Fixtures	7	Desks, chairs, cubicles
	Leasehold Assets and Improvements	Term of	
		Lease	
	Office Equipment and Machines	4	Computers, servers, plotters, software
			systems

- E. Assets that have been donated, transferred, sold, junked, or abandoned-in-place in accordance with the *OJRSA Procurement and Disposal Policy* shall be accounted for during the fiscal year in which they are removed at selling price or book value or as directed by OJRSA auditor or accountant.
- F. The cost of fully depreciated assets and the related accumulated depreciation amounts are eliminated from the accounts, whether the assets are retired or continue in service.
- G. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the life of the asset are not capitalized.

5.4 Insurance and Damage Reimbursements

- A. It is the policy of the OJRSA to reimburse the general ledger line items in the funds associated with the expense(s) incurred as a result of the damage.
- B. If an Insurance and Damage Reimbursement for damages is received during the same Accounting Period during which the expenses were incurred, the proper amount will be credited to each fund and general ledger line item that paid for the expense and will not be considered revenue. Examples include:
 - 1. If an insured vehicle is involved in a wreck and the OJRSA paid for repairs using funds designated to the Repair and Maintenance of Rolling Stock and Equipment in the budget, then the Reimbursement received from the insurance company will be credited to that general ledger line item.
 - 2. Natural Disaster or Third-Party Damage Affecting Pump Station: If damage occurs at an insured pump station, then any insurance or FEMA reimbursements received for expenses incurred by the OJRSA will be credited to the general ledger line item(s) in the fund(s) that paid the expenses. This could include a credit for Payroll Salary and Wages and Overtime for labor, Conveyance System Repair & Maintenance for equipment replacement, etc.
- C. If the Insurance and Damage Reimbursement is received after the end of the Accounting Period in which the expenses were paid, then the amount received will be considered Other Revenue in the fund(s) which paid the expense(s).

5.5 CONSUMABLES, INVENTORY, AND CHEMICAL ACCOUNTING SYSTEM.

- A. It is the policy of the OJRSA to maintain accountability over all tangible items that may have the likelihood of disappearing without being noticed or accounted for.
- B. Any item with a per unit cost of less than five hundred dollars (\$500) and a combined maximum value of five thousand dollars (\$5,000) is not considered Inventory unless it is deemed a "Vital" or "Essential" Inventory, including:
 - 1. Consumables Items not included in the definition of Inventory and are not replaced or are finished in a process, such as janitorial items, toilet paper, batteries, light bulbs, and gloves. Consumables are usually scrapped when they have failed. <u>Consumables do not include fuels, oils, or lubricants purchased or stored in any size vessel</u>.
 - 2. Desirable Inventory An item that would not cause any problems if not on hand in the moment and are typically stocked by or can easily be fabricated by vendors. Examples include bearings, gauges, and belts.
 - 3. Process Chemicals Items not included in the definition of Inventory and are liquid or gaseous chemicals used solely for the purpose of treating wastewater and biosolids that is purchased in individual bulk quantities greater than fifty (50) gallons or one hundred (100) pounds, such as chlorine gas, sodium hypochlorite, sodium bisulfite, peracetic acid, and liquid polymer. <u>Process Chemicals do not include chemicals purchased in bags (such as lime or dry polymer) or fuels, oils, or lubricants purchased</u>

, 2025

or stored in any size vessel.

- 4. Lab Chemicals Items not included in the definition of Inventory and are solid, liquid, or gaseous chemicals and associated labware used for compliance monitoring or process control in the OJRSA laboratory, such as pH solution, acids, sodium hydroxide, and *E. coli* bottles.
- 5. Other Items such as bushings, ball valves, electrical relays, and basic plumbing parts.
- C. Any Employee who purchases an Inventory stock item must follow the standard *OJRSA Procurement and Property Disposal Policy* and use a purchase order as established by the Executive Director.
- D. When an Employee is required to use an Inventory stock item, the Employee shall document the removal of such item through the work order maintenance software system (WOMSS). If the WOMSS is unavailable, the Employee shall use the Parts Room Checkout Sheet. This documentation shall provide the name of the Employee removing the item; the date removed; the Part Identification Number, description, and quantity removed; and the location where the part will be used.
- E. At the beginning of each month, the Office Manager or their designee will gather the documented information to verify the monetary value of all Inventory removed. This information will then be submitted to the Office Manager for entry into the accounting software system.
- F. The Office Manager or their designee shall conduct a physical Inventory verification twice a year, once at the end of the first six (6) months of the Fiscal Year (on or around December 31) and at the end of the Fiscal Year (on or around June 30). The results of the physical Inventory verification will be updated by the Office Manager in the accounting software system.

* * * * *

_____, 2025

REVISION HISTORY

This and previous editions must be maintained in accordance with the OJRSA Records Retention Policy.

Table 3: OJRSA Financial and Accounting Policy revision history

Revision Number	Date	Description of Changes
General	11/03/2008	OJRSA Resolution 2008/36 regarding investments.
General	02/02/2009	OJRSA Resolution 2009/3 regarding receivables.
General	04/05/2010	OJRSA Resolution 2010/17 regarding Capital Projects Fund.
General	06/07/2010	OJRSA Resolution 2010/24 regarding GASB 45.
General	12/02/2013	OJRSA Resolution 2013-22 regarding request to Member Cities to agree or disagree to Rescind the Revenue Sharing Agreement dated 11/18/2008 and filed with the Oconee County Register of Deeds in Book 1709 at page 5 (see page 92 of 139).
General	05/07/2018	OJRSA Resolution 2018-01 regarding grant-in-aid program for Member Cities.
General	03/04/2020	OJRSA Resolution 2020-01 regarding spare parts, consumables, and process chemicals inventory accounting system.
General	03/04/2020	OJRSA Resolution 2020-02 regarding Insurance and Damage Reimbursements.
General	09/14/2020	OJRSA Resolution 2021-04 regarding electronic accounts payables and receivables.
General	06/07/2021	OJRSA Resolution 2021-13 regarding capital assets and depreciation.
0000	08/07/2023	Initial issue of comprehensive OJRSA Financial and Accounting Policy by OJRSA Resolution 2024-01
0001	/2025	Limited revisions to add authority for Financial Signer and Budget functions by OJRSA Resolution 2025-XX